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Communications Northwest Inc is providing a copy of its Quarterly I 0-Q report filing and
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document is being sent via US Mail in a sealed envelope with the proper labeling.

If you have any questions, please contact Renee WilIer at (503) 629-2459 or
Renee.WiIlercftr.com or me.

Sincerely, /
1 D C

/Joseph D. Chicoine
Manager, Compliance and Reporting
916-686-3588
ioe.chicoineftr.com
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Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Intercompany ReceivableslPayables and Dividends
Third Quarter 2014
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount)

Assets cr
Liabilities ()=dr Balance Activity Balance
Intercompany Receivables!Payables Jun 30, 2014 3Q14 Sep 30, 2014
Accounts Receivable - Affiliates
Notes Receivable - Affiliates
Interest Receivable - Affiliates
Accounts Payable - Affiliates
Notes Payable - Affiliates
Accrued Interest - Affiliates

Cash Dividends Declared 3Q14
Frontier Northwest to Parent
Parent to Shareholders (total)
Parent to Shareholders (per share)

Redacted
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  
   

Yes           No X     
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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
   
Item 1. Financial Statements  

   
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
($ in thousands)  

   

   
   
   
   
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  

   

   

  

      (Unaudited)           
September 30, 2014  December 31, 2013  

ASSETS  
Current assets:  

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 808,518     $ 880,039  
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $65,868 and $71,362, respectively  462,299  479,210  
Restricted cash  1,519,000  11,411  
Prepaid expenses  70,745  68,573  
Income taxes and other current assets  66,787  179,606  

Total current assets  2,927,349  1,618,839  

Property, plant and equipment, net  7,152,461  7,255,762  
Goodwill  6,337,719  6,337,719  
Other intangibles, net  997,297  1,214,932  
Other assets  224,862  208,232  

Total assets  $ 17,639,688  $ 16,635,484  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  
Current liabilities:  

Long-term debt due within one year  $ 262,534  $ 257,916  
Accounts payable  282,796  327,256  
Advanced billings  132,848  137,319  
Accrued taxes  154,570  66,276  
Accrued interest  199,023  188,639  
Pension and other postretirement benefits  120,154  111,713  
Other current liabilities  186,444  212,468  

Total current liabilities  1,338,369  1,301,587  

Deferred income taxes  2,306,326  2,417,108  
Pension and other postretirement benefits  676,564  725,333  
Other liabilities  240,307  262,308  
Long-term debt  9,185,603  7,873,667  

Equity:  
Common stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000,000 authorized shares,                    

1,002,081,000 and 999,462,000 outstanding, respectively, and  
1,027,986,000 issued, at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013)  256,997  256,997  

Additional paid-in capital  3,991,589  4,321,056  
Retained earnings  195,055  76,108  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax  (252,141) (260,530) 
Treasury stock  (298,981) (338,150) 

Total equity  3,892,519  4,055,481  

Total liabilities and equity     $ 17,639,688     $ 16,635,484  
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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  
   

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 , 2014 AND 2013  
($ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)  

(Unaudited)  
   
   

   
   
   

   

   

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT S OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
FOR THE THREE AND NINE   MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 , 2014 AND 2013  

($ in thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   
   

   
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  

   

   

  

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
September 30,  September 30,  

2014  2013  2014  2013  

Revenue  $ 1,140,874  $ 1,185,278  $ 3,442,185  $ 3,581,207  

Operating expenses:                            
Network access expenses  107,866  103,955  321,182  320,467  
Other operating expenses  533,469  549,141  1,585,780  1,624,655  
Depreciation and amortization  260,897  285,701  815,767  887,225  
Pension settlement costs   -  40,309   -  40,309  
Acquisition and integration costs  41,611   -  72,058   -  

Total operating expenses  943,843  979,106  2,794,787  2,872,656  

Gain on sale of Mohave partnership interest   -   -   -  14,601  

Operating income  197,031  206,172  647,398  723,152  

Investment and other income, net  25,106  1,524  26,484  9,134  
Losses on early extinguishment of debt   -   -   -  159,780  
Interest expense  170,371  163,835  508,939  501,802  

Income before income taxes  51,766  43,861  164,943  70,704  
Income tax expense  9,773  8,461  45,996  22,981  

Net income  41,993  35,400  118,947  47,723  
Less: Income attributable to the noncontrolling  

interest in a partnership   -   -   -  2,643  

Net income attributable to common shareholders  
of Frontier  $ 41,993  $ 35,400  $ 118,947  $ 45,080  

Basic and diluted net income per common share  
attributable to common shareholders of Frontier  $ 0.04  $ 0.04  $ 0.12  $ 0.04  

  

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
September 30,  September 30,  

2014  2013  2014  2013  

Net income  $ 41,993  $ 35,400  $ 118,947  $ 47,723  
Pension settlement costs, net of tax (see Notes 14 and 15)   -  24,992   -  24,992  
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (see Note 14)  2,460  6,313  8,389  19,805  
Comprehensive income  44,453  66,705  127,336  92,520  

Less:  Income attributable to the  
noncontrolling interest in a partnership   -   -   -  2,643  

Comprehensive income attributable to  
the common shareholders of Frontier  $ 44,453  $ 66,705  $ 127,336  $ 89,877  
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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  
   

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY  

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 , 2013 , THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013    
AND THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 , 2014  

($ and shares in thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  

   

   

  

  
   Equity of Frontier  
   Accumulated  
   Additional  Other  
   Common Stock  Paid-In  Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury Stock  Noncontrolling  Total  
   Shares  Amount  Capital  Earnings  Loss  Shares  Amount  Interest  Equity  
   
Balance January 1, 2013  1,027,986  $ 256,997  $ 4,639,563  $ 63,205  $  (483,576) (29,576) $ (368,593) $ 11,675  $ 4,119,271  

Stock plans   -  - (22,268)  -  - 1,107  30,679   - 8,411  
Dividends on common stock   -  - (299,822)  -  -  -  -  - (299,822) 
Net income   -  -  - 45,080   -  -  - 2,643  47,723  
Pension settlement costs, net of tax   -  -  -  - 24,992   -  -  - 24,992  
Other comprehensive income, net  

of tax   -  -  -  - 19,805   -  -  - 19,805  
Distributions   -  -  -  -  -  -  - (6,400) (6,400) 
Sale of Mohave partnership interest   -  -  -  -  -  -  - (7,918) (7,918) 

Balance September 30, 2013  1,027,986  256,997  4,317,473  108,285  (438,779) (28,469) (337,914)  - 3,906,062  
Stock plans   -  - 3,597   -  - (55) (236)  - 3,361  
Dividends on common stock   -  - (14) (99,932)  -  -  -  - (99,946) 
Net income   -  -  - 67,755   -  -  -  - 67,755  
Pension settlement costs, net of tax   -  -  -  - 2,389   -  -  - 2,389  
Other comprehensive income, net  

of tax   -  -  -  - 175,860   -  -  - 175,860  
Balance December 31, 2013  1,027,986  256,997  4,321,056  76,108  (260,530) (28,524) (338,150)  - 4,055,481  

Stock plans   -  - (28,822)  -  - 2,619  39,169   - 10,347  
Dividends on common stock   -  - (300,645)  -  -  -  -  - (300,645) 
Net income   -  -  - 118,947   -  -  -  - 118,947  
Other comprehensive income, net  

of tax   -  -  -  - 8,389   -  -  - 8,389  

Balance September 30, 2014  1,027,986  $ 256,997  $ 3,991,589  $ 195,055  $  (252,141) (25,905) $ (298,981) $  - $ 3,892,519  
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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  
   

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 , 2014 AND 2013  
($ in thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   
   

   
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements  

   
   

   

   

  

2014  2013  

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:  
Net income  $ 118,947  $ 47,723  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by  

operating activities:  
Depreciation and amortization  815,767  887,225  
Losses on early extinguishment of debt   -  159,780  
Pension settlement costs   -  40,309  
Pension/OPEB costs  (20,875) 22,558  
Stock based compensation expense  18,350  12,561  
Gains on sale of assets  (25,000) (14,601) 
Other non-cash adjustments  29,508  7,353  
Deferred income taxes  (124,757) (43,310) 
Change in accounts receivable  16,911  57,474  
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities  53,392  (91,322) 
Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and other current assets  59,823  (10,409) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  942,066  1,075,341  

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing activities:  
Capital expenditures - Business operations  (413,041) (484,082) 
Capital expenditures - Integration activities  (82,251)  -  
Network expansion funded by Connect America Fund  (40,934) (21,042) 
Grant funds received for network expansion from Connect America Fund  3,748  5,998  
Proceeds on sale of assets  25,000  17,755  
Cash transferred (to)/from escrow  (1,507,589) 21,788  
Other assets purchased and distributions received, net  27,043  3,536  

Net cash used by investing activities  (1,988,024) (456,047) 

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing activities:  
Long-term debt borrowings  1,560,801  750,000  
Financing costs paid  (39,271) (19,360) 
Long-term debt payments  (244,780) (1,548,548) 
Premium paid to retire debt   -  (159,429) 
Dividends paid  (300,645) (299,822) 
Other financing activities  (1,668) (7,670) 

Net cash provided from (used by) financing activities        974,437        (1,284,829) 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents        (71,521)       (665,535) 
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1,  880,039  1,326,532  

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30,  $ 808,518  $ 660,997                
Supplemental cash flow information:  
Cash paid during the period for:  

Interest  $ 464,334  $ 493,427  
Income taxes, net  $ 36,086  $ 82,675  

Non-cash investing and financing activities:  
Financing obligation for contributions of real property to pension plan  $  -  $ 18,216  
Reduction of pension obligation  $  -  $ (18,216) 
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(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies :  
(a)   Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates :  

Frontier Communications Corporation and its subsidiaries are referred to as “we,” “us,” “our,” “Frontier,” or the “Company” in this report. Our interim unaudited consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and 
notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 .   All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. These interim 
unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary, in the opinion of Frontier’s management, to present fairly the results for 
the interim periods shown. Revenues, net income and cash flows for any interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the full year. For our interim financial statements 
as of and for the period ended September 30 , 2014 , we evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through the date that we filed this quarterly report on Form 10-
Q with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  
   
Frontier had a 33 ⅓ % controlling general partner interest in a partnership entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave). Mohave’s results of operations were included in our consolidated 
financial statements through its date of disposal on April 1, 2013. The minority interest of the li mited partners was reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as “Income attributable to the 
noncontrolli ng interest in a partnership.” On April 1, 2013, the Company sold its partnership interest in Mohave and received proceeds of $17.8 million. The Company recognized a gain on sale of 
approximately $14.6 million before taxes in   the second quarter of 2013.  
   
The preparation of our interim financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) the reported amounts of revenue and expense s during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from 
those estimates.  Estimates and judgments are used when acco unting for revenue recognition ,  including the allowance for doubtful  accounts ,  impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets, 
depreciation and amortization, income taxes, contingencies, and pension and other  postretirement benefits, among others.  Certain information and footnote disclosures have been excluded and/or 
condensed pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.     

   
(b)   Revenue Recognition :  

Revenue is recognized when services are provided or when products are delivere d to customers. Revenue that is billed in advance includes: monthly recurring network access services (including data 
services), special access services and monthly recurring voi ce, video and related charges. The unearned portion of these fees is initially deferred as a component of “Advanced billings” on our consolidated 
balance sheet and recognized as revenue over the period t hat the services are provided. Revenue that is billed in arrears includes: non-recurring network access services (including data services), switched 
access services, non-recur ring voice and video services. The earned but unbilled portion of these fees is recognized as revenue in our consolidated statements of operations and accrued in accounts 
receivable in the period that the services are provided. Excise taxes are recognized as a liability when billed.  Installation fees and their related direct and incremental costs are initially deferred and 
recognized as revenue and expense over the average te rm of a customer relationship. We recognize as current period expense the portion of installation costs that exceeds installation fee revenue.  

   
As required by law, the Company collects various taxes from its customers and subsequently remits these taxes to governmental authorities. Substantially all of these taxes are recorded through the 
consolidated balance sheet and presented on a net basis in our consolid ated statements of operations. We also collect Universal Service Fund (USF) surcharges from customers (primarily federal USF) that 
we have recorded on a gross basis in our consolidated statements of operations and included within “Revenue” and “Other operating expenses ”   of $29.6 million and $ 28.6 million , and $90.3 million and 
$ 86.6 million, for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively .  
   

   

   
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
(Unaudited)  
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(c)   Goodwill and Other Intangibles :  
Goodwill represent s the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible net assets acquired. We undertake studies to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities 
acquired and allocate purchase prices to assets and liabilities, including property, plant and equipment, goodwill and o ther identifiable intangibles. We annually (during the fourth quarter) or more 
frequently, if appropriate, examine the carrying value of our goodwill and trade name to determine whether there are any impairment l osses. We test for goodwill impairment at the “operating segment” 
level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Our four   operating segments consist of the following regions: Cen tral, East, National and West. Our regional operating segments are aggregated into one 
reportable segment .    
   
The Company amortizes finite-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and reviews such intangible assets at least annually (during the fourth quarter) to assess whether any potential 
impairment exists and whether factors exist that would necessitate a change in useful life and a different amortization period.   
   

(2)   Recent Accounting Literature :  
Revenue Recognition  
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 , “Revenu e from Contracts with Customers.”   This standard   requires companies to 
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchan ge for those goods or 
services. This new standard is effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. Companies are permitted to either apply the requirements 
retrospectively to all prior periods presented, or apply the requirements in the year of adoption, through a cumulative adjustment. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard 
on January 1, 2017 , but has not yet selected a transition method or determined the impact of adoption on its consolidated financial statements.  
   
Discontinued Operations    
In April 2014, the FASB issu ed ASU No. 2014-08 , “Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Dispo sals of Components of an Entity ”   which raises the threshold for a disposal to qualify as 
discontinued operations and requires new disclosures for individually material disposal transactions that do not meet the definition of a discontinue d operation. Under the new standard, companies report 
discontinued operations when they have a disposal that represents a strategic shift that has or will have a major impact on op erations or financial results. This new standard will be a pplied prospectively and 
will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2015. This new standard   is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements .      
   
Internal Control – Integrated Framework  
In May 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued its updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework (the 2013 Framework) and related illustrative 
documents. COSO will continue to make available its original Framework during the transition period extending to December 15, 2014. The Company currently utilizes COSO’s original Framework, which 
was published in 1992 and is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing and conducting internal controls over external financial reporting and assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 
Framework is expected to help organizations design and implement internal control in light of many changes in business and operating environments since the issuance of the original Framework, broaden the 
application of internal control in addressing operations and reporting objectives, and clarify the requirements for determining what constitutes effective internal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Framework 
during 2014 and do not expect that it will have a significant impact on the Company.  

   

   
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
(Unaudited)  
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(3)   Transaction s :  

The AT&T Transaction    
On October 24 , 2014 ,   pursuant to the stock purchase agreement dated December 16, 2013 , as amended ,   the Company acquire d the wireline properties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut (the AT&T 
Transaction) for a purchase price of $2.0 billion in cash, excluding ad justments for working capital. Following the AT&T Transaction, Frontier now owns and operate s   the wireline business and fiber optic 
network servicing residential, commercial and whole sale customers in Connecticut. The Company also acquire d   the U-verse® video and DISH satellite TV customers in Connecticut. See Note 8 for further 
discussion related to financing the AT&T Transaction.  
   
With respect to the AT&T Transaction, the final allocation of the purchase price will be based on the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of October 24 , 2014.  The initial accounting for 
this transaction is not yet complete, including the purchase price allocation. We expect to disclose this information, along with pro forma financial information , in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2014.      
   
T he Company   reorganized into five regional operating segments in October 2014 . Our operating segments will consist of the following regions: Central, East, Mid-Atlantic, National   and West. In 
conjunction with the reorganization of our operating segments, we will reassign goodwill to certain of our reporting units in the fourth quarter using a relative fair value allocation approach.  
   
The 2010 Transaction  
On July 1, 2010, the Company acquired the defined assets and liabilities of the local exchange business and related landline activities of Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizon) in 14 states (the Acquired 
Territories), including Internet access , long distance services and broadband video provided to designated customers in the Acquired Territories (the 20 10 Acquired Business). Frontier was considered the 
acquirer of the 2010 Acquired Business for accounting purposes. All integration activities for the 2010 Transaction were completed as of the end of 2012.  

   
(4)   Accounts Receivable :  

The components of accounts receivable, net are as follows:  
   
   

   
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on our estimate of our ability to collect accounts receivable. Bad debt expense, which is recorded as a reduction to revenue ,   was $16.5 million and $ 
20.6 million , and $41.2   million and $ 52.9 million , for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.  
   

(5)   Property, Plant and Equipment :  
Property, plant and equipment, net is as follows:  
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    ($ in thousands)     September 30, 2014     December 31, 2013                    
Retail and Wholesale     $  482,857     $ 498,717  
Other        45,310        51,855  
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts        (65,868)       (71,362) 

Accounts receivable, net     $ 462,299     $ 479,210  

  

($ in thousands)     September 30, 2014     December 31, 2013                    
Property, plant and equipment     $  15,311,984     $ 14,850,697  
Less:  Accumulated depreciation        (8,159,523)       (7,594,935) 

Property, plant and equipment, net     $ 7,152,461     $ 7,255,762  
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Depreciation expense is principally based on the composite group method. Depreciation expense was $ 195.0 million and $ 208.7 million , and $ 598.1 million and $ 636.2 million, for the thre e   and nine   
months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respect ively. As a result of our annual independent study of the estimated remaining useful lives of our plant assets, we adopted new estimated remaining useful 
lives for certain pl ant assets as of October 1, 2013 , with an insignificant impact to depreciation expense.   

   
(6)   Goodwill and Other Intangibles :  

The components of goodwill by the reporting units in effect as of both September 30 , 2014   and December 31, 2013 are as follows:  
   
   

   
The components of other intangibles are as follows:  

   

   

Amortization expense was $ 65.9 million and $ 77.0   million , and $ 217.6 million and $ 251.0   million, for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Amortization 
expense represents the amortization of intangible assets (primarily customer base) that were acquired in the 2010 Transaction based on a useful life of nine years for the residential customer base and 12 years 
for the business customer base, amortized on an accelerated method.  
   

(7)   Fair Value of Financial Instruments :  
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and estimated fair values for long-term debt at September 30 , 2014 and December 31, 2013 .   For the other financial instruments including cash, 
accounts receivable, long-term debt due within one year, accounts payable and other current liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the relatively short ma turities of those instruments.  
   
The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated based upon quoted market prices at the reporting date for those financial instruments.  
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($ in thousands)        
            
Central     $ 1,815,498  
East        2,003,574  
National        1,218,113  
West        1,300,534  

Total Goodwill     $ 6,337,719  

  

($ in thousands)  
   September 30, 2014  December 31, 2013  

      
Gross Carrying  Accumulated  Net Carrying  Gross Carrying  Accumulated  Net Carrying  

      Amount  Amortization  Amount  Amount  Amortization  Amount  

                                       
Other Intangibles:                                   

Customer base     $  2,427,648     $  (1,554,487)    $  873,161  $  2,427,648     $  (1,336,852)    $  1,090,796  

Trade name and license        124,136         -      124,136     124,136         -      124,136  

Total other intangibles     $ 2,551,784  $ (1,554,487) $ 997,297  $ 2,551,784  $ (1,336,852) $ 1,214,932  

  

($ in thousands)  September 30, 2014     December 31, 2013  

Carrying  Carrying  
Amount  Fair Value  Amount  Fair Value  

Long-term debt  $ 9,185,603  $ 9,603,496  $ 7,873,667  $ 8,191,744  
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(8)   Long-Term Debt :  

The activity in our long-term debt from December 31, 201 3 to September 30 , 2014 is summarized as follows:  
   
   

   

   
* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issuance costs a nd debt premiums or discounts. The interest rates at September 30 , 2014 represent a weighted average of multiple issuances .  
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Nine months ended               

   
       

          
September 30, 2014               

Interest  
       

                                        
Rate at  

       
December 31,     Payments     New     September 30,  

   
September 30,  

($ in thousands)     2013  
   

and Retirements     Borrowings  
   

2014  
   

2014 *  
       

                                        
   

Senior Unsecured Debt     $ 8,107,066  
   

$ (243,125) 
   

 $ 1,550,000      $ 9,413,941  
   

7.77%  
Other Secured Debt        13,550     

   
(1,344)    

   
10,801     

   
23,007  

   
3.71%  

Rural Utilities Service Loan Contracts        8,930  
      

(311) 
      

 -   
   

8,619  
   

6.15%  
Total Long-Term Debt     $ 8,129,546  

   
 $ (244,780) 

   
 $ 1,560,801     $ 9,445,567  

   
7.76%  

                                       
  Less: Debt (Discount)/Premium        2,037                         

   
2,570     

   

  Less: Current Portion        (257,916)                        
   

(262,534)    
   

      
$ 7,873,667                         $ 9,185,603     
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Additional information regarding our Senior Unsecured Debt is as follows:  
   
   

   
*      Represents borrowings under the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below .  
**    Interest rate represents a weighted average of the stated interest rates of multiple issuances.  
   
On September 17 , 2014, the Company completed a registered debt offering of $775.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.250 %   senior unsecured notes due 2021, and $775.0 million aggregate principal 
amount of 6.875 % senior unsecured notes due 2025 . We received net proceeds , after d educting underwriting fees, of $ 1,519.0 million from the offering which were included in restricted cash as of 
September 30, 2014 .   The Company use d the net proceeds from the offering of the notes, together with borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below, and cash on hand, to finance 
the AT&T Transaction, which closed on October 24 , 2014 . See Note 3 for further discussion of the AT&T Transaction.  
   
During the first nine months of 2014, we also entered into secured financings totaling $10.8 million with four year terms and no stated interest rate for certain equipment purchases.  
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($ in thousands)     September 30, 2014     December 31, 2013  

  
      Principal     Interest     Principal     Interest  

      Outstanding     Rate     Outstanding     Rate  
  
Senior Notes and Debentures Due:                             

5/1/2014      -     -        200,000     8.250%  

3/15/2015     105,026     6.625%        105,026     6.625%  

4/15/2015     96,872     7.875%        96,872     7.875%  

10/14/2016 *     416,875     3.035% (Variable)        460,000     3.045% (Variable)  

4/15/2017     606,874     8.250%        606,874     8.250%  

10/1/2018     582,739     8.125%        582,739     8.125%  

3/15/2019     434,000     7.125%        434,000     7.125%  

4/15/2020     1,021,505     8.500%        1,021,505     8.500%  

7/1/2021     500,000     9.250%        500,000     9.250%  

9/15/2021     775,000     6.250%         -     -  

4/15/2022     500,000     8.750%        500,000     8.750%  

1/15/2023     850,000     7.125%        850,000     7.125%  

4/15/2024     750,000     7.625%        750,000     7.625%  

1/15/2025     775,000     6.875%         -     -  

11/1/2025     138,000     7.000%        138,000     7.000%  

8/15/2026     1,739     6.800%        1,739     6.800%  

1/15/2027     345,858     7.875%        345,858     7.875%  

8/15/2031     945,325     9.000%        945,325     9.000%  

10/1/2034     628     7.680%        628     7.680%  

7/1/2035     125,000     7.450%        125,000     7.450%  

10/1/2046     193,500     7.050%        193,500     7.050%  

         9,163,941              7,857,066        
Subsidiary Senior Notes and Debentures Due:                                
  2/15/2028        200,000     6.730%        200,000     6.730%  

  10/15/2029        50,000     8.400%        50,000     8.400%  

Total     $ 9,413,941     7.59% **     $ 8,107,066     7.78% **  
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On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment letter for a bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facility) and recognized interest expense related to this commitment of $ 7.5 million and $ 22.5 million   during the 
three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014. On January 29, 2014, we entered into a bridge loan agreement (the Bridge Loan Agreement) with the Lenders party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., as administrative agent .  
   
On July 16 , 2014, t he Bridge Facility was reduced by $350.0 million following execution of the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below . On September 17 , 2014, the Bridge Loan Agreement was 
terminated upon consummation o f the registered debt offering   referred to above.  
   
On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a $350.0 million senior unsecured 
delayed draw term loan facility (the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement). The facility was drawn upon closing of the AT&T Transaction with proceeds used to partially finance the acquisition. The maturity date is 
the fifth anniversary of the draw date . Repayment of the outstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly installments in the amount of $8.8 million, commencing one full fiscal quarter after the draw 
date, with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the maturity date. Borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement will bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as 
defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Company. Interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 
3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustments based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement.  
   
On June 2, 2014, t he Company entered into a new revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the other parties named therein (the New 
Revolving Credit Agreement), for a $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the New Revolving Credit Facility) with a scheduled termination date of May 31, 2018 and terminated its existing revolving credit 
facility (the Prio r Revolving Credit Facility) under the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2013, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the 
other parties named therein (the Prior Revolving Credit Agreement). As of September 30 , 2014 ,   the New Revolving Credit Facility was fully available and no borrowings had been made thereunder .   
Associated commitment fees under the New   Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time to time depending on the Company’s debt rating (as defined in the New Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.45 
0 % per annum as of September 30 , 2014 . During the term of the New Revolving Credit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credit, subject to customary 
borrowing conditions. Loans under the New Revolving Credit Facility will  bear interest based on the alternate base rate or the adjusted LIBO R ate (each as determined in the New Revolving Credit 
Agreement), at the Company’s election, plus a margin based on the Company’s debt rating (ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO   R ate 
borrowings). The current pricing on this facility would have been 1.0 0 % or 2.0 0 % , respectively, as of September 30 , 2014 . Letters of credit issued under the New Revolving Credit Facility will also be 
subject to fees that vary depending on the Company’s debt rating. The New Revolving Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be u sed to fund dividend payments. The terms of 
the New Revolving Credit Facility are substantially similar to the terms of the Prior Revolving Credit Facility .  
   
The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a $575.0 million senior unsecured term loan facility with a 
final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement). The entire facility was drawn upon execution of the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement in October 2011.  Repayment of the outstanding 
principal balance is made in quarterly installments in the amount of $14.4 million, which commenced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the final maturity 
date. Borrowings under the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defined in the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the 
Company. Interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustments based on the Total 
Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement. The current pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875% .      
   
As of September 30 , 2014 , we were in compliance with all of our debt and credit facility financial covenants.  
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P rincipal payments for our currently outstanding debt for the next five years are as follows as of September 30 , 2014 :    
   

   

   

   
   
   

(9)   Income Taxes:    
The following is a reconciliation of the provision for income taxes computed at federal statutory rates to the effective rates:    

   
   

   
Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 include the impact of a $4 . 0 million benefit from federal research and development credits, an $8. 8 million benefit from the domestic production 
activities deduction and   a   $2.9   million   benefit   arising from state tax law changes , partially offset by a net increase in reserves for uncertain tax positions of $ 0 .9   million .  
   
Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 include the impact of a charge of $ 5.2 million resulting from the settlement of the 2010 IRS audit and a $ 6.0 million charge resulting from the 
adjustment of deferred tax balances, partially offset by a $ 5.0 million benefit from the net reversal of reserves for uncertain tax positions and a $5.0 million benefit arising from state law changes that was 
recognized in the third quarter of 2013 .  
   
As of September 30, 2014, there were no   uncertain tax positions for which the statutes of limitations are expected to expire during the next twelve months and which would affect our effective tax rate .  
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      Principal  
($ in thousands)  Payments  

2014 (remaining three months)  $  15,161  
2015  $  262,541  
2016     $  348,167  
2017  $  610,075  
2018  $  583,948  
2019  $  434,565  

  

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
September 30,  September 30,  

2014  2013  2014  2013  

Consolidated tax provision at federal statutory rate  35.0  %  35.0  %  35.0  %  35.0  %  
State income tax provisions, net of federal income  

tax benefit  1.1  (1.5) 1.1  (4.1) 
Tax reserve adjustment  5.5  (1.3) 0.6  (6.6) 
Domestic production activities deduction  (16.9)  -  (5.3)  -  
Changes in certain deferred tax balances   -  (11.5) (1.7) 1.5  
IRS audit adjustments   -   -   -  7.3  
Federal research and development credit  (7.8)  -  (2.4)  -  
All other, net     2.0     (1.4)    0.6     (0.6) 

Effective tax rate     18.9  %     19.3  %     27.9  %     32.5  %  
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(10) Net Income Per Common Share :  
The reconciliation of the net income per common share calculation is as follows:  
   
   

   
Stock Options  
For the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 , options to purchase 83,000 shares (at exercise prices ranging from $ 12.50 to $ 14.15 ) and for t he three and nine   months ended September 30 , 
2013 ,   options to purchase 93,000   shares (at exercise prices ranging from $ 12.50 to $ 14.15 ) , issuable under employee compensation plans were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share 
(EPS) for those periods because the exercise prices were greater than the average market price of our common stock and, therefore, the effect wou ld be antidilutive. In calculating diluted EPS, we apply the 
treasury stock method and include future unearned compensation as part of the assumed proceeds.  
   
Stock Units  
At September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , we had 1,050,568 and 1,141,963 stock units, respectively, issued under our Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Fee Equity Plan (Deferred Fee Plan) and the Non-Employee 
Directors’ Equity Incentive Plan (Directors’ Equity Plan). These securities have not been included in the diluted income per share of common stock cal culation for the three and nine   months ended September 
30 , 2014 and 2013 because their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect.  

   
(11) Stock Plans :  

At September 30 , 2014 , we had six stock-based compensation plans under which grants were made and awards remained outstanding.   No further awards may be granted under four of the plans: the 1996 
Equity Incentive Plan (the 1996 EIP), the Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 EIP), the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 E IP) and the Deferred Fee Plan. At September 30 , 
2014 , there were 22,540,761 shares authorized for grant and 14,681,456 shares available for grant under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2013 EIP and together with the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP and the  
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   For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
( $ and shares in thousands, except per share amounts )  September 30,  September 30,  
  
   2014  2013  2014  2013  

Net income used for basic and diluted earnings    
per common share:  

Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier  $ 41,993  $ 35,400  $ 118,947  $ 45,080  
Less:  Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock awards  (749) (632) (2,262) (1,908) 

Total basic and diluted net income attributable to common  

shareholders of Frontier  $ 41,244  $ 34,768  $ 116,685  $ 43,172  
   
Basic earnings per common share:  
Total weighted average shares and unvested restricted stock  

awards outstanding - basic  1,002,092  999,826  1,001,656  999,017  
Less:  Weighted average unvested restricted stock awards  (7,445) (6,711) (7,263) (6,537) 

Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic  994,647  993,115  994,393  992,480  
  

Basic net income per share attributable to common  

shareholders of Frontier  $ 0.04  $ 0.04  $ 0.12  $ 0.04  
                               
Diluted earnings per common share:  
Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic  994,647  993,115  994,393  992,480  
Effect of dilutive shares  3,208  990  3,351  922  

Total weighted average shares outstanding - diluted  997,855  994,105  997,744  993,402  
  

Diluted net income per share attributable to common  
shareholders of Frontier  $ 0.04  $ 0.04  $ 0.12  $ 0.04  
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2009 EIP, the EIPs ) and the Directors’ Equity Plan. Our general policy is to issue shares from treasury upon the grant of restricted shares and the exercise of options.  
   
Performance Shares  
On February 15, 2012, the Company’s Compensation Committee, in consultation with the other non-management directors of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Committee’s independent executive 
compensation consultant, adopted the Frontier Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP ). LTIP awards are granted in t he form of performance shares. The LTIP is currently offered under the Company’s 2009 
EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of senior vice presidents and above. The LTIP awards have performance, market and time-vesting conditions.   

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of a three -year performance period (a M easurement Period ), a target number of performance shares are awarded to each LTIP participant with resp ect to the 
Measurement Period. The performance metrics under the LTIP are (1) annual targets for operating cash flow based on a goal set during the first 90 days of each year in the three-year Measurement Period and 
(2) an overall performance “modifier” set during the first 90 days of the Measurement Period, based on the Company’s total return to stockholders (i.e ., Total Shareholder Return or TSR ) relative to the 
Integrated Telecommunications Services Group (GICS Code 50101020) for the three-ye ar Measurement Period. Operating cash flow performance is determined at the end of each year and the annual results 
will be averaged at the end of the three-year Measurement Period to determine the preliminary number of shares earned under the LTIP award.   The TSR performance measure is then applied to decrease or 
increase payouts based on the Company’s three year relative TSR performance. LTIP awards, to the extent earned, will be paid out in the form of common stock shortly following the end of the three-year 
Measurement Period.   

In 2012, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 979, 000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance goal for the first year in the 2012-2014 Measurement 
Period and the TSR modifier for the three-year Measurement Period. In 2013, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 1,124,000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash 
flow performance goal for 2013, which applies to the first year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and the second year of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period. On February 17 , 2014 , the Compensation 
Committee granted 1,028,000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance goal for 2014, which applies to the first year in the 2014-2016 Measurement Period , the second 
year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and the third year of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period. The number of shares of common stock earned at the end of each three-year Measurement Period may be 
more or less than the number of target performance shares granted as a result of operating c ash flow and TSR performance. An executive must maintain a satisfactory performance rating during the 
Measurement Period and must be employed by the Company at the end of the three-year Measurement Period i n order for the award to vest. The Compensation Committee will determine the number of shares 
earned for each three year Measurement Period in February of the year following the end of the Measurement Period.  
   
The following summary presents information regarding LTIP target performance shares as of September 30 , 2014 and changes during the nine months then ended with regard to LTIP shares awarded under the 
2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP :  

   
   

   
For the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , the Company recognized an expense of $ 3.0 million and $ 0. 8 million, respectively, for the LTIP.  
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 Number of       

 Shares  
Balance at January 1, 2014     1,749,000  

LTIP target performance shares granted     1,028,000  
LTIP target performance shares forfeited     (80,000) 

Balance at September 30, 2014     2,697,000  
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Restricted Stock  
The following summary presents information regarding unvested restricted stock as of September 30 , 2014 and changes during the nine months then ended with regard to restricted stock under the 2009 EIP 
and the 2013 EIP:  
   
   

   
For purposes of determining compensation expense, the fair value of each restricted stock grant is estimated based on the average of the high and low market price of a share of our common stock on the date of 
grant. Total remaining unrecognized compensation cost associated with unvested restricted stock awards at September 30 ,   2014   was $ 24.9 million and the weighted average period over which this cost is 
expected to be recognized is approximately 1.5 years.  
   
Shares granted during the first nine months of 2013 totaled 3,355,000 . The total fair value of shares granted and vested at September 30 , 2013 was approximately $ 14.0 million and $ 12.9 million , 
respectively. The total fair value of unvested restricted stock at September 30 , 2013 was $ 26.3 million .   The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted shares granted during the nine month s ended 
September 30 , 2013 was $ 4.10 .  
   
We have granted restricted stock awards to employees in the form of our  common stock. None of the restricted stock awards may be sold, assigned, pledged or  otherwise transferred, voluntarily or 
involuntarily, by the employees until the restrictions lapse, subject to limited exceptions. The restrictions are time-based. Compensation expense, recognized in “Other operating expenses”, of $ 1 1.8   million 
and $ 1 0.7 million for the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively, has been recorded in connection with these grants.  
   
Stock Options  
There ha s been no activity with regard to stock options during the first nine months of 2014.  There was no intrinsic value for the stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30 ,   2014 and 2013 .  
   

(12) Segment Information :  
We operate in one reportable segment. Frontier provides both regulated and unregulated voice, data and video services to residential, business and wholesale customers and is typically the incumbent voice 
services provider in its service areas.     
   
As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the aggregation criteria to combine our operating segments because all of our properties share similar economic characteristics, in that they provide the same 
products and services to similar customers using comparable technologies in all of t he states in which we operate. The regulatory s tructure is generally similar. Differences in the regulatory regime of a 
particular state do not significantly impact the economic characteristics or operating results of a particular property .   
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Weighted     
            Average           
      Number of      Grant Date     Aggregate  

      Shares     Fair Value     Fair Value  

Balance at January 1, 2014     6,234,000     $ 4.80     $ 28,988,000  

Restricted stock granted  3,836,000     $ 4.74     $ 24,974,000  

Restricted stock vested  (2,365,000) 
   $ 5.22     $ 15,399,000  

Restricted stock forfeited  (282,000)    $ 4.51       
Balance at September 30, 2014     7,423,000     $ 4.65     $ 48,321,000  
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(13 )   Investment and Other Income, Net :  

The components of investment and other income, net are as follows:  
   
   

   
During the third quarter of 2014, we recognized a gain of $ 25.0 million associated with the sale of our interest in Fairmo u nt Cellular LLC .  
   

(14 )   Comprehensive Income :  
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting shareholders’ investment and pension/postretirement benefit (OPEB) liabilities that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net 
income.  
   
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax at September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , and changes for the nine months then ended, are as follows:  
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For the three months ended September 30,  For the nine months ended September 30,  

( $ in thousands )  2014  2013  2014  2013  

Interest and dividend income  $ 118  $ 382  $ 1,350  $ 2,268  
Investment gain   -   -   -  1,407  
Gain on sale of Fairmount Cellular LLC  25,000   -  25,000   -  
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer advances   -  1,393  253  3,345  
Split dollar life insurance proceeds   -   -   -  2,263  
All other, net  (12) (251) (119) (149) 

Total investment and other income, net  $ 25,106  $ 1,524  $ 26,484  $ 9,134  

  

($ in thousands)  Pension Costs  OPEB Costs  
Deferred taxes on pension and 

OPEB costs  All other  Total  

Balance at January 1, 2014  $  (411,432) $  (5,230) $  156,280  $  (148) $  (260,530) 

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications   -  -  - 148  148  

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss  14,069  (777) (5,051)  - 8,241  

Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)  

   

14,069  (777) (5,051) 148  8,389  

Balance at September 30, 2014  $  (397,363) $  (6,007) $  151,229  $   - $  (252,141) 
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The significant items reclassified from each component of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the three and nine months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 are as follows:  

   

(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses.  
(b) These accumulated other comprehensive loss components are included in the computation of net periodic pension and OPEB cost s (see Note 1 5 - Retirement Plans for additional details).  
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($ in thousands)  Pension Costs  OPEB Costs  
Deferred taxes on pension and 

OPEB costs  All other  Total  

Balance at January 1, 2013  $  (697,874) $  (74,264) $  288,712  $  (150) $  (483,576) 

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications  133  (267) (227) 2  (359) 

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss  30,948  1,575  (12,359)  - 20,164  

Recognition of net actuarial loss for pension settlement costs  40,309   - (15,317)  - 24,992  

Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)  

   

71,390  1,308  (27,903) 2  44,797  

Balance at September 30, 2013  $  (626,484) $  (72,956) $  260,809  $  (148) $  (438,779) 

  

   
($ in thousands)  Amount Reclassified from  

   Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
  

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive     For the three months ended September 30,     For the nine months ended September 30,     Affected Line Item in the Statement Where  

Loss Components     2014     2013     2014     2013     Net Income is Presented  

Amortization of Pension Cost Items                                           
Prior-service costs     $ (11)    $ (2)    $ (33)    $ (6)       
Actuarial gains        (4,398)       (10,798)       (14,036)       (30,942)       
Pension settlement costs      -   (40,309)     -   (40,309)       
         (4,409)       (51,109)       (14,069)       (71,257)    Income (loss) before income taxes  

Tax impact     1,675     19,421     5,346     27,078     Income tax (expense) benefit  

      $ (2,734)    $ (31,688)    $ (8,723)    $ (44,179)    Net income (loss)  

Amortization of OPEB Cost Items 

Prior-service costs  $ 890  $ 1,526  $ 2,670  $ 4,576  

Actuarial gains     (449)    (1,695)    (1,893)    (6,151) 

   441  (169) 777  (1,575) Income (loss) before income taxes  
Tax impact     (168)    64     (295)    598     Income tax (expense) benefit  

   $ 273  $ (105) $ 482  $ (977) Net income (loss)  
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(15 )   Retirement Plans :   
The following tables provide the components of net periodic benefit cost:  
   

   

   
During the first nine months of 201 4 and 201 3 , we capitalized $ 11.3   million and $ 15.0 million, respectively, of pension and OPEB expense into the cost of our capital expenditures, as the costs relate to our 
engineering and plant construction activities. Based on current assumptions and plan asset values, we estimate that our 201 4 pension and OPEB expenses will be approximately $65 million to $ 7 5 million ,   
excluding   amounts related to the recently acquired Connecticut operations and amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures, as compared to   $ 97.1 million in 2013, excluding the impact of 
pension settlement costs and amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures . We made total cash contributions to our pension plan during the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 of $ 70.5 
million .   An additional cash contribution of $ 12 . 7   million was made on October 15, 2014 , for a total contribution of   $ 83 . 2 million in 2014 . Our 2014 total contributions include the impact of the 
extension of funding relief included in the Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014.   The Company estimates that t here are no further contributions required in 2014.  
   
The Compa ny’s pension plan assets have in creased from $1,2 16.5 million at December 31, 201 3   to $ 1,288.1   million at September 30 , 2014 , an in crease of $ 71.6 million, or 6 % .   This in crease is a 
result of positive investment returns of $ 91.7 million and cash contributions of $ 70.5 million, offset by   benefit payments of $ 90.6   million during the first nine months of 2014 .    
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       Pension Benefits  

   For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
   September 30,  September 30,  
  
   2014  2013  2014  2013  
( $ in thousands )  
Components of net periodic pension benefit cost  
Service cost  $ 9,170  $ 12,141  $ 29,050  $ 37,809  
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation  18,997  18,827  58,645  56,587  
Expected return on plan assets  (23,195) (23,585) (70,219) (72,765) 
Amortization of prior service cost /(credit)  11  2  33  6  
Amortization of unrecognized loss  4,398  10,798  14,036  30,942  
Net periodic pension benefit cost  9,381  18,183  31,545  52,579  
Pension settlement costs   - 40,309   - 40,309  
Total periodic pension benefit cost  $ 9,381  $ 58,492  $ 31,545  $ 92,888  

   
  

  
   Postretirement Benefits  
      Other Than Pensions (OPEB)  

   For the three months ended  For the nine months ended  
   September 30,  September 30,  
  
   2014  2013  2014  2013  

( $ in thousands )  
Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost  
Service cost  $ 2,408  $ 3,088  $ 7,514  $ 9,446  
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation  5,470  4,181  15,046  13,061  
Expected return on plan assets  (23) (25) (37) (111) 
Amortization of prior service cost/(credit)  (890) (1,526) (2,670) (4,576) 
Amortization of unrecognized loss  449  1,695  1,893  6,151  

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost  $ 7,414  $ 7,413  $ 21,746  $ 23,971  
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(1 6 )   Commitments and Contingencies :    
F rom time to time we make short-term purchasing commitments to vendors with respect to capital expenditures, however we generally do not enter into firm, written contracts for such activities.   
   
The Company incurred $ 72.1 million of operating expenses, consisting of   $ 2.9   million and $ 69.2 million of acquisition and integration costs , respectively ,   and $ 82.3 million in capital expenditures 
related to the AT&T Transaction during the nine months ended September 30 , 2014. We will continue to incur expenditures associated with the AT&T Transaction through 2015.  
   
In connection with the 2010 Transaction, the FCC   and certain state regulatory commissions, in connection with granting their approvals of the 2010 Transaction, specified certain capital expenditure and 
operating requirements for the Acquired Territories for specified periods of time post-closing.  These requirements focus primarily on certain capital investment commitments to expand broadband availability 
to at least 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 megabits per second (Mbps) by the end of 2013 .   We are required to provide download speeds of 4 
Mbps to at least 75% ,   80% and 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively . As of December 31, 2013, we met our FCC requirement to 
provide 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the hou seholds in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013. As of December 31, 2012 , w e also met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to 75% and 80% 
of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013 and 2014 , respectively .   As of September 30 , 2014 , we expanded broadband availability in excess of 4 Mbps to 84.2 % of the households 
throughout the Acquired Territories.  
   
To satisfy all or part of certain capital investment commitments to three state regulatory commissions in connection with the 2010 Transaction , we placed a total of $115.0 million in cash into escrow accounts 
and obtained a letter of credit for $190 million in 2010. In September 2013, the letter of credit expired.   Another $72.4 milli on of cash in an escrow account was acquired in connection with the 2010 
Transaction to be used for service quality initiatives in the state of West Virginia. As of September 30 , 2014 ,   all requirements of the three state regulatory commissions had been satisfied, all funds had been 
released from the se escrow accounts and the Company had no restricted cash related to these escrow accounts.  
   
In our normal course of business, we have obligations under certain non-cancela ble arrangements for services. During 2012, we entered into a “take or pay” arrangement for the purchase of future long 
distance and carrier services. Our remaining commitments under the arrangement are $145. 5 million and $140.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of September 30 , 
2014 , we expect to utilize the services included within the arrangement and no liability for the “take or pay” provision has been recorded.  

   
We are party to various legal proceedings (including individual, class and putative class actions) arising in the normal course of our business covering a wide range of matters and types of claims including, but 
not limited to, general contracts, billing disputes, rights of access, taxes and surcharges, consumer protection, trademark and patent infringement, employment, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and 
disputes with other carriers.   
   
We accrue an expense for pending litigation when we determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the los s can be reasonably estimated. Legal defense costs are expensed as 
incurred.  None of our existing accruals , after considering insurance coverage, fo r pending matters is material .   We monitor our pending litigation for the purpose of adjusting our accruals and revisi ng our 
disclosures accordingly, when required. Litigation is, however, subject to uncertainty, and the outcome of any particu lar matter is not predictable. We will vigorously defend our interests for pending litigation, 
and as of this date, we believe that the ultimate resolution of all such matters, after considering insurance coverage or other indemnities to which we are entitled, will not have a material adverse effect on our 
consolidated financial position, results of operations, or our cash flows.   
   
We sold all of our utility b usinesses as of April 1, 2004. However, we have retained a potential payment obligation associated with our previous electric utility activ ities in the State of Vermont. The Vermont 
Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermont utilities, including us, entered into a purchase power agree ment with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreement contains “step-up” provisions that state if any 
VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation under the contract to purchase power from Hydro-Quebec, then the other VJO participants will assume responsibility for the  
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defaulting part y’s share on a pro-rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchase power obligation is 10% .   If any member of the VJO defaults on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebec agreement, then the 
remaining members of the VJO, including us, may be required to pay for a substantially larger share of the VJO’s total purchase power obligation for the remainder of the agreem ent (which runs through 
2015). U.S. GAAP rules require that we disclose “the maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee.” U.S. GAAP rules also state 
that we must make such disclosure “… even if the likelihood of the guarantor’s having to make any payments u nder the guarantee is remote…” As noted above, our obligation only arises as a result of default 
by another VJO me mber, such as upon bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the “maximum potential amount” disclosure requirement we must assume that all members of the VJO simultaneously default, an 
unlikely scenario given that all VJO members are regulated utility providers with regulated cost recovery. Despite the remote chance that such an event could occur, or that the State of Vermont could or would 
allow such an event, assuming that all the members of the VJO defaulted on January 1, 201 4 and remained in default for the duration of the contract (another 2 years), we estimate that our undiscounted 
purchase obligation for 201 4 through 2015 would be approximately $ 287.4 million. In such a scenario, the Company would then own the power and could seek to recover its costs.  We would do this by 
seeking to recover our costs from the defaulting members and/or reselling the power to other utility provider s or the northeast power grid. There is an active market for the sale of power.  We could potentially 
lose money if we were una ble to sell the power at cost. We caution that we cannot predict with any degree of certainty any potential outcome.  
   

(1 7 )   Subsequent Events :    
On October 24 , 2014, the Company completed its acquisition of the wireline properties from AT&T in Connecticut. See Note 3 for further discussion.  
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Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

   
Forward-Looking Statements  
   
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ material ly from those expressed or implied in the 
statements.  Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Words such as “believe,” 
“anticipate,” “expect” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements (including oral representations) are only predictions or statements of current plans, 
which we review continuously.  Forward-looking statements may differ from actual future results due to, but not limited to, and our future results may be material ly affected by, the following potential risks or 
uncertainties.  You should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all potential risks or uncertainties.  We note the following as a partial list:  
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•  The ability to successfully integrate the Connecticut operations into our existing operations and the diversion of management’s attention from ongoing business and regular business responsibilities to effect 
such integration ;    

•  The effects of increased expenses   or unanticipated liabilities incurred due to activities related to the AT&T Transaction;  

•  The risk that the cost savings from the AT&T Transaction may not be fully realized;  

•  The sufficiency of the assets to be acquired from AT&T to enable the combined company to operate   all aspects of   the acquired business;  

•  Disruption from the AT&T Transaction making it more difficult to maintain relationships with customers or suppliers of the Connecticut operations;  

•  Our ability to meet o ur debt and debt service obligations, which have increase d   as a result of the AT&T Transaction;  

•  The effects of greater than anticipated competition from cable, wireless and other wireline carriers that could require us to implement new pricing, marketing strategies or new product or service offerings and 
the risk that we will not respond on a timely or profitable basis;  

•  Reductions in the number of our voice customers that we cannot offset with increases in broadband subscribers and sales of other products and services;  

•  Our ability to maintain relationships with customers, employees or suppliers;  

•  The effects of ongoing changes in the regulation of the communications industry as a result of federal and state legislation and regulation, or changes in the enforcement or interpretation of such legislation and 
regulation;  

•  The effects of any unfavorable outcome with respect to any current or future legal, governmental or regulatory proceedings, audits or disputes;  

•  The effects of changes in the availability of federal and state universal service funding or other subsidies to us and our competitors;  

•  Our ability to successfully adjust to changes in the communications industry and to implement strategies for growth;  

•  Continued reductions in switched access revenues as a result of regulation, competition or technology substitutions;  

•  Our ability to effectively manage service quality in our territories and meet mandated service quality metrics;  

•  Our ability to successfully introduce new product offerings, including our ability to offer bundled service packages on terms that are both profitable to us and attractive to customers;  
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Any of the foregoing events, or other events, could cause financial information to vary from management’s forward-looking statemen ts included in this report. You should c onsider these important factors in 
evaluating any statement in this report on Form 10-Q or otherwis e made by us or on our behalf. The following information is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements 
and related notes included in this report.  We have no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements and do not undertake to do so.  
   
Investors should also be aware that while we do, at various times, communicate with securities analysts, it is against our policy to disclose to them selectively any material non-public information or other 
confidential information. Accordingly, investors should not assume that we agree with any statement or report issued by an analyst irrespective of the content of the statement or report. To the extent that reports 
issued by securities analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not our responsibility.  
   
Overview  
See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of t his report for a discussion of T he Transaction s .  
   

   

   
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

•  The effects of changes in accounting policies or practices adopted voluntarily or as required by generally accepted accounting principles or regulations;  

•  Our ability to effectively manage our operations, operating expenses and capital expenditures, and to repay, reduce or refinance our debt;  

•  The effects of changes in both general and local economic conditions on the markets that we serve, which can affect demand for our products and services, customer purchasing decisions, collectability of 
revenues and required levels of capital expenditures related to new construction of residences and businesses;  

•  The effects of technological changes and competition on our capital expenditures, products and service offerings, including the lack of assurance that our network improvements in speed and capacity will be 
sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities and quality of competing networks;  

•  The effects of increased medical   expenses (including as a result of the impact of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act) and pension and postemployment expenses, such as retiree medical and 
severance costs, and related funding requirements;  

•  The effects of changes in income tax rates, tax laws, regulations or rulings, or federal or state tax assessments;  

•  Our ability to successfully renegotiate union contracts;  

•  Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the value of our pension plan assets, which could require us to make increased contributions to the pension plan in 201 5 and beyond;  

•  The effects of economic downturns which could result in difficulty in collection of revenues and loss of customers;  

•  Adverse changes in the credit markets or in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings organizations, which could limit or restrict the availability, or increase the cost, of financing 
to us ;  

•  Our cash flow from operations, amount of capital expenditures, debt service requirements, cash paid for income taxes and liquidity may affect our payment of dividends on our common shares;  

•  The effects of state regulatory cash management practices that could limit our ability to transfer cash among our subsidiaries or dividend funds up to the parent company; and  

•  The effects of severe weather events such as hurricanes, tornadoes, ice storms or other natural or man-made disasters , which may increase our operating expenses or adversely impact customer revenue .  
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The Company is the largest communications company providing services predominantly to rural areas and small and medium-sized towns an d cities in the United States. As of September 30, 2014, t he Company 
operated in 27 states .   Following consummation of the AT&T Transaction on October 24 , 2014, the Company now operates in 28 states .   The Company is the nation’s fourth largest Incumbent Local Exchange 
Carrier (ILEC), with 3.0 million   customers, 2.0 million broadband connections and 14,500 employees as of September 30 , 2014 .    
   
Cost Savings  
Based on current estimates and assumptions, we expect to achieve cost savings as a result of the AT&T Transaction, principally (1) by leveraging the scalability of our existing corporate administrative functions 
and information technology and network systems to cover certain former AT&T functions and systems and (2) by internalizing certain functions formerly provided by third-party service providers. We estimate that 
our annualized cost savings will  reach approximately $200 million by the end of 2017 as we implement our targeted list of initiatives.  As o f the closing date of the AT&T T ransaction, we have realized 
approximately $ 150 million of an nualized cost savings .  
   
The foregoing future cost savings are based on our estimates and assumptions that, although we consider them reasonable, are inherently uncertain.  Significant business, economic, competitive and regulatory 
uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, may affect these expected cost savings.  See “Forward Looking Statements” above.  
   
Regulatory Developments    
In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulemaking looking at rules to “Preserve a Free and Open Internet,” (i.e., net neutrality) , including a reconsideration of the legal classification of broadband and 
proposed restrictions on broadband network management practices. On December 21, 2010, the FCC adopted an order imposing some regulations on Internet service providers. These regulations affect fixed and 
mobile br oadband providers differently. These regulations became effective November 20, 2011, and we are in comp liance with these regulations. On January 14, 2014, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. 
Circuit vacated the portions of the FCC’s rules that prohibited blocking and required non-discriminatory treatment. On May 15, 2014, the FCC adopted a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking which sought comment on 
how it can preserve the spirit of the vacated rules. The Notice also sought comment on what other regulatory actions the FCC could take to implement “Open Internet” policies ,   in particular reclassifying 
broadband as a Title II Telecommunications service. The future state of these regulations and their effect on us is unknown.  
   
On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted an Order to reform the Federal Universal Service High-Cost Fund ( USF ) and Intercarrier C ompensation (the 2011 Order). The 2011 Order changed how federal 
subsidies are calculated and disbursed, with these changes being phased-in beginning in July 2012. These changes transition the USF , which supports voice services in high-cost areas, to the Connect America 
Fund (CAF), which supports broadband deployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phase I, implemented in 2012 to provide interim support while the FCC developed CAF Phase II , provide d for ongoing USF suppo rt 
for price cap carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in the first round of CAF Phase I made available for price cap ILECs an additional $ 300 million in incremental high- cost broadband support 
to be used for broadband deployment to unserved areas. In 2012 and early 2013 ,   we received $71.9 million in CAF Phase I funds and initially recorded such funds as increases to Cash and Other liabilities in the 
balance sheet. The $71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I support is expected to enable an incremental 92,877 households for broadband service and was accounted for as Contribution s in Aid of 
Construction . We are required to spend the first round of the CAF Phase I funds to enable these 92,877 households no later than July 24, 2015.  We spent $ 19.3 million of the first round of CAF Phase I funds on 
network expansion during the first nine months of 2014 and $ 56.9 million of th es e CAF Phase I funds to date through September 30, 2014 ,   enabling 77,600 unserved households .  
   
On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report and Order authorizing a second round of CAF Phase I (the 2013 Order) .  As part of this May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC expanded the areas eligible for funding 
to incl ude those that lack service of 3 Mbps download and 768 kbps upload. In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from the second round of CAF Phase I and in December 2013 the FCC awarded $57.6 million to us 
to serve 94,899 locations in our high-cost, unserved and underserved areas across multiple states.   The FCC also announced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier was eligible for an additional $3.7 million   in fun 
ding to serve 6,815 locations. We received these funds in February 2014. We are required to spend the second round of the CAF Phase I funds to enable these 101,714 households no later than March 14, 2017. The 
second round of CAF Phase I includes certain accompanying spending requirements from the Company, and our capital expenditure plans take this into account .   We spent $ 21.6 million of the second round of 
CAF Phase I funds on network expansion during the first nine months of 2014 ,   enabling 61,600 unserved   and underserved households .  
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In the aggregate, w e   spent $ 40.9 million of the CAF Phase I funds received on network expansion and upgrades during the first nine months of 2014 and $ 78.5 million of all CAF Phase I funds received through 
September 30, 2014 ,   enabling 139,200 households in total .  
   
The FCC continues to finalize its CAF Phase II program, which is intended to provide long-term support for broadband in high-cost areas that were unserved by a competitor.  The 201 1   Order established that 
price cap carriers would have the right of first refusal to accept support across the high-cost footprint of their state in exchange for committing to provide broadband and voice services to those areas for five 
years.  On June 10, 2014, the FCC released an Order and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking seeking comment on potential changes to the CAF Phase II structure. The Notice seeks comment on whether the FCC 
should raise the broadband speed obligation for CAF Phase II from 4 Mbps download to 10 Mbps download.  Recognizing that such a change in speed may also be more costly, the FCC seeks comment on whether 
it should lengthen the term of CAF Phase II support available to price cap carriers and also whether it should relax price cap carriers’ obligation to deploy to 100% of the supported locations in exchange for a 
commensurate reduction in funding.  T hese changes to the CAF Phase II program have not been finalized .   
   
The 2011 Order also reformed Intercarrier Compensation, which is the payment framework that governs how carriers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate traffic, and it began a multi-year transition 
in July 2012, with the second step implemented in July 2013 and the third step in July 2014 .  The transition will move terminating traffic to a near zero rate by 2017. Frontier expects to be able to recover a 
significant portion of those revenues through end user rates and other replacement support mechanisms. The 2011 Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain parties have also petitioned the 
FCC to reconsider various aspects of the 2011 Order. On May 23, 2014, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 10 Circuit issued a decision denying all challenges to the 2011 Order. Certain parties have continued to 
appeal that decision. Accordingly, we cannot predict the long-term impact at this time but believe that the 2011 Order will provide a stable regulatory framework to facilitate our ongoing focus on the deployment of 
broadband into our rural markets.  
   
Effective December 29, 2011, the 2011 Order required providers to pay interstate access rates for the termination of VoIP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specified that 
changes to originating ac cess rates for VoIP traffic would not be implemented until July 2014. The 2011 Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain parties have also petitioned the FCC to 
reconside r various aspects of the 2011 Order. T he net impact of the 2011 Order during the period from July 2012 through September 2014   was insignificant . The net effect of this change to originating access 
after July 1, 2014 is dependent upon the percentage of VoIP traffic.  
   
Certain states also have their own open proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and other intercarrier compensation and state universal service funds.  Although the FCC has pre-empted state 
jurisdiction on most access charges, many states could consider moving forward with their proceedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided or the effect on our subsid y or switched 
access revenues.  
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The following should be read in conjunction with Item 7.  “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 .  
   
(a)  Liquidity and Capital Resources    
   
As of September 30 , 2014 , we had cash and cash equivalents aggregating $ 808.5 million ,   excluding total restricted cash   of $1,521.0 million , primarily representing funds escrowed for the financing of the 
AT&T Transaction .   As a result of our registered debt offering, as described below, we placed net proceeds of $1,519.0 million in escrow on September 17, 2014 .   Our primary source of funds continued to be 
cash generated from operations.  For the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 , we used cash flow from operations, cash on hand and debt proceeds to fund principally all of our cash investing and financing 
activities, primarily capital expenditures, dividends and debt repayments.  
   
As discussed below, o n September 17 , 2014, the Company completed a registered debt offering of $775.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.250%   senior unsecured notes due 2021, and $775.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of 6.875% senior unsecured notes due 2025 . The Company use d the net proceeds from the offering of the notes, together with borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as 
defined below, and cash on hand to finance the AT&T Transaction, that closed on October 24, 2014 .    
   
We have a revolving credit facility with a line of credit of $750.0 million that we believe provides sufficient flexibility to meet our liquidity needs.  As of September 30 , 2014 ,   this credit facility was fully 
available and we had not made any borrowings under it .   
   
At September 30 , 2014 , we had a working capital surplus of $ 1,589.0 million , which include d   restricted cash of $1,519.0 million placed in escrow, as discussed above .   Excluding such restricted cash, our 
working capital surplus was $ 70.0 million at September 30, 2014.  We believe our operating cash flows, existing cash balances, and existing revolving credit facility will be adequate to finance our working capital 
requirements, fund capital expenditures, make required debt payments, pay taxes, pay dividends to our stockholders, and support our short-term and long-term operating strategies for the next twelve months . 
However, a number of factors, including but not limited to, losses of customers, pricing pressure from increased competition, lower subsidy and switched access revenues, and the impact of the current economic 
environment may negatively impact our cash generated from operations. In addition, based on information available to us, we believe that the financial institutions syndicated under our revolving credit facility 
would be able to fulfill their commitments to us, but this could change in the future.  As of September 30 , 2014 , we had $ 15.2 million of debt maturing during the last three months of 2014 ; $ 262.5 million and $ 
348. 2 millio n of debt will matur e in 201 5 and 201 6 , respectively.  
   

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities  
   
Cash flows provided by operating activities declined $ 133.3 million, or 12 %, for the   nine months ended September 30 , 2014 , as compar ed with the prior year period. The decrease was primarily the result of 
lower revenue and net income before depreciation and amortization.  
   
We paid  $ 36.1 million in   net cash tax es   during the first nine months of 201 4 as compared to $ 8 2.7 million during the first nine months of 2013 . Our 2013 cash taxes paid reflect ed the continued impact of 
bonus depreciation in accordance with the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012.  
   
In connection with the AT&T Transaction, the Company recognized $ 72.1 million of acquisition and integration costs incurred during the first nine months of 2014 and $ 22.5   million of interest expense related 
to the Bridge Facility commitment, that was terminated upon consummation of the registered debt offering on September 17, 2014.   The Company will continue to incur operating expenses associated with th e 
AT&T Transaction through 2015 .   
   

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities  
   
Capital Expenditures  
For the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , our capital expenditures were $ 495.3 million and $ 484.1 million ( including $ 82.3 million of integration-related capital expenditures for the nine 
months ended September 30 , 2014 for the AT&T Transaction), respectively .   In addition to the capital expenditures mentioned above, n etwork expansion funded by previously received CAF funds amounted to $ 
40.9   million and $ 21.0   million for the nine months ended September 30 , 2014  
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and 2013 , respectively. The Company will continue to incur capital   expenditures associated with th e AT&T Transaction through 2015 .   
   

Cash Flows used by and provided from Financing Activities  
   
Debt Financings    
On September 17 , 2014, the Company completed a registered debt offering of $775.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.250 %   senior unsecured notes due 2021, and $775.0 million aggregate principal 
amount of 6.875 % senior unsecured notes due 2025 . We received net proceeds , after d educting underwriting fees, of $ 1,519.0 million   from the offering .   The Company use d the net proceeds from the offering 
of the notes, together with borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below, and cash on hand to finance the AT&T Transaction, that closed on October 24 , 2014 .  
   
During the first nine months of 2014, we also entered into secured financings totaling $10.8 million with four year terms and no stated interest rate for certain equipment purchases.  
   
Debt Reduction  
During the first nine months of 2014 and 2013, we retired an aggregate principal amount of $ 244.8 million and $ 1,548.5 million, respectively, of debt consisting of $ 243.1 million and $ 1,548.2 million, 
respectively, of senior unsecured debt and $0. 3 million   of rural utilities service loan contracts in each period . Additionally, we retired $ 1. 4 million of other secured debt during the first nine months of 2014.  
   
We may from time to time repurchase our debt in the open market, through tender offers, exchanges of debt securities, by exercising rights to call or in privately negotiated transactions. We may also refinance 
existing debt or exchange existing debt for newly issued debt obligations.  
   
Bridge Facility  
On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment letter for a bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facility) and recognized interest expense related to this commitment of $ 22.5   million during the nine months ended 
September 30 , 2014. On January 29, 2014, we entered into a bridge loan agreement with the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent .    
   
On July 16 , 2014, the Bridge Facility was reduced by $350.0 million following execution of the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below .   On September 17 , 2014, the Bridge Loan Agreement was 
terminated upon consummation o f the registered debt offering   referred to above.  
   
Bank Financing  
On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a $350.0 million senior unsecured 
delayed draw term loan facility (the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement). The facility was drawn upon closing of the AT&T Transaction with proceeds used to partially finance the acquisition. The maturity date is the 
fifth anniversary of the draw date. Repayment of the outstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly installments in the amount of $8.8 million, commencing one full fiscal quarter after the draw date, with 
the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the  maturity date. Borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement will bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate ( as defined in the 
2014 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Company. Interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR 
borrowings) are subject to adjustments based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement.  
   
The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a $575.0 mil lion senior unsecured term loan facility with a final 
maturity of October 14, 2016 (the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement).  The entire facility was drawn upon execution of the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement in October 2011.  Repayment of the outstanding principal 
balance is made in quarterly installments in the amount of $14.4 million, which commenced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the final maturity date.  Borrowings 
under the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defined in the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Company.  Interest rate margins 
under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject  
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to adjustments based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement.  The current pricing on this facility is LIBOR   plus 2.875%.   
   
Revolving Credit Facility  
On June 2, 2014, t he Company entered into a new revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the other parties named therein (the New 
Revolving Credit Agreement), for a $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the New Revolving Credit Facility) with a scheduled termination date of May 31, 2018 and terminated its existing revolving credit 
facility (the Prior Revolving Credit Facility) under the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2013, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the 
other parties named therein (the Pr ior Revolving Credit Agreement). As of September 30 , 2014, the New Revolving Credit Facility was fully available and no borrowin gs had been made thereunder .   Associated 
commitment fees under the New Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time to time depending on the Company’s debt rating (as defined in the New Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.45 0% per annum 
as of September 30 , 2014. During the term of the New Revolving Credit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credit, subject to customary borrowing conditions. 
Loans under the New Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest based on the alternate base rate or the adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the New Revolving Credit Agreement), at the Company’s 
election, plus a margin based on the Company’s debt rating (ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate borrowings). The current pricing on this 
facility would have been 1.00% or 2.00%, respec tively, as of September 30 , 2014. Letters of credit issued under the New Revolving Credit Facility will also be subject to fees that vary depending on the 
Company’s debt rating. The New Revolving Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be u sed to fund dividend payments. The terms of the New Revolving Credit Facility are 
substantially similar to the terms of the Prior Revolving Credit Facility .  
   
Covenants  
The terms and conditions contained in our indentures, the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement ,   the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and   the New Revolving Credit Agreement include the timely payment of 
principal and interest when due, the maintenance of our corporate existence, keeping proper books and records in accordance with U.S. GAAP, restrictions on the incurrence of liens on our assets, and restrictions 
on asset sales and transfers, mergers and other changes in corporate control. We are not subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends either by contract, rule or regulation, other than that imposed by the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. However, we would be restricted under the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement ,   the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and the New Revolving Credit Agreement 
from declaring dividends if an event of default occurred and was continuing at the time or would result from the dividend declaration.  
   
The 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement , the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and the New Revolving Credit Agreement each contain a maximum leverage ratio covenant. Under those covenants, we are required to 
maintain a ratio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash) in excess of $50.0 million to (ii) consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the agreements) over the last four 
quarters not to exceed 4.50 to 1.   
   
The 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement,   the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, the New Revolving Credit Agreement     and certain indentures for our senior unsecured debt obligations limit our ability to create liens 
or merge or consolidate with other companies and our subsidiaries’ ability to borrow funds, subject to important exceptions and qualifications.  
   
As of September 30 , 2014 , we were in compliance with all of our debt and credit facility covenants.  
   
Dividends  
We currently intend to pa y regular quarterly dividends. Our ability to fund a regular quarterly dividend will be impacted by our ability to generate cash from operations. The declarations and payment of future 
dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depend upon many factors, including our financial condition, results of operations, growth prospects, funding requirements, applicable law, 
restrictions in agreements governing our indebtedness and other factors our Board of Directors deem relevant.  
   
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other relationships with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have a material current or future effect upon our 
financial statements.  
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Future Commitments  
In our normal course of business we have obligations under certain non-cancelable arrangements for services.  During 2012, we entered into a “take or pay” arrangement for the purchase of future long distance and 
carrier services. Our remaining commitments under the arrangement are $145. 5 million and $140.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of September 30 , 2014 , we expect 
to utilize the services included within the arrangement and no liability for the “take or pay” provision has been recorded.  
   
To satisfy all or part of certain capital investment commitments to three state regulatory commissions in conne ction with the 2010 Transaction , we placed a total of $115.0 million in cash into several escrow 
accounts and obtained a letter of credit for $190.0 million in 2010. In September 2013, the letter of credi t   expired.   Another $72.4 million of cash in an escrow account was acquired in connection with the 2010 
Transaction to be used for service quality initiatives in the state of West Virginia. As of September 30 ,   2014, all requirements of the three state regulatory commissions had been satisfied, all funds had been 
released from these escrow a ccounts and the Company had no restricted cash related to these escrow accounts.    
   
T he FCC and certain state regulatory commissions, in connection with granting their approvals of the 2010 Transaction, specified certain capital expenditure and operating requirements for the Acquired Territories 
for specified periods of time post-closing. These requirements focus primarily on certain capital investment commitments to expand broadband availability to at least 85% of the households throughout the 
Acquired Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 Mbps by the end of 2013 . We are required to provide download speeds of 4 Mbps to at least 75%, 80% and 85% of the households throughout the 
Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, we met our FCC requirement to provide 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the households in the Acquired Territories by 
the end of 2013. As of December 31, 2012, w e also met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to 75% and 80% of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013 and 2014 , 
respectively .   As of September 30 , 2014 , we expanded broadband availability in excess of 4 Mbps to 84.2 % of the households throughout the Acquired Territories.  
   
As of September 30 , 2014 and December 31, 2013 , we had expanded our broadband availability to the households throughout the Company ’s territories as follows:  

   

   
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  
We review all significant estimates affecting our consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustment prior to their publication.  Uncertainties with respect to such 
estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of financial statements; accordingly, it is possible that actual results could differ from those estimates and changes to estimates could occur in the near term. 
The preparation of our interim financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) the reported amounts of revenue and expense s during the reporting period. Actual results ma y differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and judgments are used when acco unting for revenue recognition , including the allowance for doubtful accounts , impairment of long-lived assets, impairment of intangible assets, depreciation and 
amortization, pension and other postretirement benefits, in come taxes and contingencies   among others.  
   
Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and our Audit Committee has reviewed our disclosures relating 
to such estimates.  
   
There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from the information provided in Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 .     
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(In excess of)  
   As of  

September 30, 2014  
   As of  

December 31, 2013  
               
1 Mbps     91%     90%  
3 Mbps     89%     86%  
4 Mbps     87%     83%  
6 Mbps     84%     76%  
12 Mbps     75%     61%  
20 Mbps     55%     48%  
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New Accounting Pronouncements  
See Note 2 of our consolidated financial statements for additional information related to recent accounting literature .  
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(b)  Results of Operations  
REVENUE  

   
Revenue is generated pri marily through the provision of voice services, data services , video services , network access, carrier services   and other Internet services. Such revenues are generated through either a 
monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usage , and revenue recognition is not dependent upon significant judgments by management, with the exception of a determination of a provision for uncollectible amounts.  
   
Revenue for the three months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased  $ 44.4 million, or 4 %, to $ 1,140.9 million as compared with the three months ended September 30 , 2013. Revenue for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2014 decreased   $139.0 million, or 4% , to $3,442.2 million as compared with the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The decline s du ring bo th the third quarter and the first nine months of 
201 4   are primarily the result of decreases in voice services revenues and lower switched and nonswitched access revenue, partially offset by an increase in data services revenue, each as described in more detail 
below. Additionally, wireless revenue decreased by $ 7.8   million for the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 due to the sale of our Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave) interest on April 1, 2013.  
   
Switched access and subsidy revenue of $ 391.3 million represented 11 % of ou r revenues for the nine months ended September 30 , 2014. Switched access revenue was $ 153.9 million for the nine months ended 
September 30 , 2014 , or 4% of our revenues, down from $ 180.0   million, or 5 % of our revenues, for the nine months ended September 30 , 2013. Subsidy revenue was $ 237.4  m illion, or 7 % of our revenues, f 
or the nine months ended September 30 ,   2014, as compared to $ 236.2 million, or 7 %, of our revenues, for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 .   We expect declining revenue trends in switched access 
revenue to continue during the remainder of 2014 .   
   
During the quarter ended September 30, 2014, we lost 25,200 customers, net, as compared to a loss of 34,000 customers, net during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 and a loss of 24,200 customers, net, during the 
quarter ended September 30, 2013. During the first nine months of 2014, we lost 73,200 customers, net, as compared to a loss of 76,400 customers, net, during the first nine months of 2013.  
   
Total residential revenue for the three and nine months ende d   September 30 , 2014   declined $ 7.6 million, or 2 % ,   and $34.3 million, or 2% , respectively,   as compared to the three and nine months en ded 
September 30 , 2013 , pri marily as a result of decreases in voice services revenue and the sale of our interest in the Mohave partnership , partially offset by increases in data services revenue and increases in 
subscriber line charges due to additional access recovery charges. These access recovery charges are a result of regulatory changes related to Intercarrier Compensation reform and are expected to continue to 
increase, as allowed by the FCC to partially offset regulatory mandated declines in switched access rates. We had approximately 2,740,300 and 2,822,100 total residential customers as of September 30 , 2014 and 
2013, respectively. We lost approximately 21,800 and   20,700 residential customers , net, during the quarter s ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively, and lost approximately 63,200 and   64,900 
residential customers, net, during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, principally driven by declines in voice customers . O ur residential customer monthly churn was 1.86 % and   
1.81 % for the quarter s ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. Average monthly residential revenue per customer (res idential ARPC) increased $ 0.84 , or 1 %, to $ 60.34   and $ 0.54 , or 1 % , to $ 
59.68 ,   during the three and nine months ended September 30 , 2014 , respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30 , 2013 .   The overall increase in residen tial ARPC is due to a 
higher percentage of the Company’s residential custome rs that take broadband services, Frontier Secure products, broadband customer migration to higher speeds and certain pricing actions . The Company expects 
continuing increases in data services revenue, primarily driven by increased broadband subscribers , and continuing declines in voice services revenue .    
   
Total business revenue for the three and   nine months ended September 30 , 2014   declined $ 25.8 million, or 5 %,   and $79.9 million, or 5% ,   respectivel y, as compared to the three and nine months ended 
September 30 , 201 3 ,   principally as a result of decreases in our voice services revenue and wireless backhaul revenue .   We had approximately 260,800 and   274,700 total business customers as of September 
30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. We lost approximately 3,400 and 3,500   business customers , net,   during the quarter s ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively , and lost approximately 10,000   and 
11,500 business customers, net, during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Average monthly business revenue per customer (business ARPC) in creased $ 1.9 6   to $ 658.56   and $ 
1.92   to $ 652.75   during the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30 , 2013 .   The overall increase in business ARPC during the three 
and nine months ended September 30, 2014 as compared to 2013 is primarily due to declining customer counts for our small business customers that carry a lower ARPC. The C ompany expects the declines in 
voice   services revenues and wireless  
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backhaul revenues from business customers to continue in 2014 as compared to 2013 , mitigated, in part, by increases in data services revenues.  
   
During the three and nine months ended September 30 , 2014 , the Company added approximately 21,900 and 86,700 net broadband subscribers , respectively .   During the three and nine months ended September 
30, 2013 , the Company added approximately 26,800 and 84,500 net broadband subscri bers , respectively .   As of September 30 , 2014 , approximately 70 % of our residential broadband customers   subscribe d to 
a bundle of services. As of September 30 , 2014, we were able to offer broadband to approximately 6.5 million households, or 91 % of the 7.2 million households in our markets. The increase in broadband 
subscribers contributed to our improved data services revenue performance. We continue to invest in network speed and capacity to support our goal of increasing broadband penetration and market share .   We 
expect to continue to increase broadband subscribers d uring the remainder of 2014 .  
   
Management believes that customer counts and average monthly revenue per customer are important fac tors in evaluating our trends. Among the key services we provide to residential customers are voice service, 
data service and video service .   We continue to explore the potential to provide additional services to our customer base, with the objective of meeting all of our customers’ communications needs .   For business 
customers we provide voice and data services, as well as a broad range of value-added services.  
   
In the section “Other Financial and Operating Data” below is a table that presents customer counts, average monthly revenue per customer and customer churn.  It also categorizes revenue into customer revenue 
( residential and business) and regulatory revenue (switched access and subsidy revenue).  The decline in the number of customers was partially offset by increased penetration of additional higher revenue 
generating products sold to both residential and business customers, which has increased our average monthly revenue per customer.   
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OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA  
   
   

   
   

    Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave), which was sold to Verizon Wireless on April 1, 2013.  
   

Note:  As stated in our report for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2014, prior period revenue and certain operating statistics have been revised from the previously disclosed amounts to reflect the insignificant reclassification of certain revenues from residential to business and the related impact on 
average monthly revenue per customer amounts.  
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As of  
September 30, 2014  

   

As of December 31, 2013  % Increase (Decrease)  

   

As of  
September 30, 2013  

   

% Increase (Decrease)  
Customers     3,001,101  

   
3,074,280  (2) %        

3,096,794  
   

(3) %  
Broadband subscribers     1,953,376  

   
1,866,670  5  %        

1,838,915  
   

6  %  
Video subscribers     395,899     385,353     3  %        377,915     5  %     
  

      
  

   For the three months ended  
September 30,  

   
$ Increase     % Increase  

For the nine months ended  
September 30,     $ Increase     % Increase  

   2014  2013     (Decrease)     (Decrease)  2014  2013     (Decrease)     (Decrease)  
Revenue (in 000's):                                

         
                     

Residential  $  498,009  $  505,624  $  (7,615)    (2) %     $  1,491,013  $  1,525,330  $  (34,317)    (2) %     
Business  518,618     544,439  (25,821)    (5) %     1,559,853  1,639,721  (79,868)    (5) %     

Customer revenue     1,016,627     1,050,063     (33,436) (3) %        
3,050,866  

   
3,165,051  (114,185) (4) %     

Switched access and subsidy     124,247     135,215     (10,968) (8) %        
391,319  

   
416,156  (24,837) (6) %     

Total revenue  $  1,140,874  $  1,185,278  $  (44,404) (4) %     $  3,442,185  $  3,581,207  $  (139,022) (4) %     
                     
Switched access minutes of use     3,637     4,091     (11) %        

11,340  
   

12,490  (9) %     
(in millions)                       

  
      

   As of or for the three months ended September 30,  
   

% Increase  As of or for the nine months ended September 30,  % Increase  
   2014  2013  (Decrease)  2014  2013  (Decrease)  
  
Residential Customer Metrics:                       
Customers     2,740,278     2,822,141     (3) %  

   
2,740,278  

   
2,822,141  (3) %  

Revenue (in 000's)  $  498,009  $  505,624     (2) %  $  1,491,013  $  1,525,330  (2) %  
Average monthly residential                    

revenue per customer $  60.34  $  59.50     1  %  $  59.68  $  59.14  1  %  
Customer monthly churn     1.86%     1.81%     3  %  

   
1.76%  

   
1.70%  4  %  

                                    
Business Customer Metrics:                    
Customers     260,823     274,653     (5) %  

   
260,823  

   
274,653  (5) %  

Revenue (in 000's)  $  518,618  $  544,439     (5) %  $  1,559,853  $  1,639,721  (5) %  
Average monthly business                    

revenue per customer  $  658.56  $  656.60     0  %  $  652.75  $  650.83  0  %  
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REVENUE  
   

   

   
Voice Services  
Voice services revenue for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased $ 38.3   million, or 8 %, to $ 471.8 million , and $124.1 million, or 8% , to $1,425.7 million, respectively, as compared 
with the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to the continued loss of voice customers and , to a lesser extent, decreases in long distance services revenue and individual features 
packages , partially offset by increase d   local voice charges to residential and business end users .     Local and enhanced services revenue for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased  $ 
34.4 million, or 8 %, to $ 384.6 million ,   and $109.1 million, or 9% , to $1,164.5 million, respectively, primarily due to the continued loss of voice customers and, to a lesser extent, decreases in individual features 
packages, partially offset by increase d local voice charges to residential and business end users . Long distance services revenue for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased  $ 3.9 
million, or 4 %, to $ 87.2 million, and $15.1 million, or 5% , to $261.2 million , respectively, primarily due to lower minutes of use driven by fewer customers ,   partially offset by increased cost recovery surcharge 
rates .  
   
Data and Internet Services    
Data and Internet services revenue for the three and nine months ended September   30 , 2014   decreas ed  $ 2.4 million, or 1 %, to $ 468.8 million ,   and $0.5 million to $1,393.0 million , respectively, as 
compared with the three   and nine months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to the decline in wireless backhaul revenue ,   mostly   offset by an increase in residential and business data services revenue .   
Data services revenue increased  $ 23.5 million, or 10 %, to $ 260.6 million , and $62.2 million, or 9% , to $752.0 million , respectively,   for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 , as compar ed 
with the same period s of 2013 , primarily due to increases in the number of broadband subscribers and sales of Frontier Secure products. As of September 30 , 2014 , the number of the Company’s broadband 
subscribers increased by approximately 114,500 , or 6 %, since   September 30 , 2013 .  Data and Internet services also includes nonswitched access revenue from data transmission services to other carriers and 
high-volume business customers with dedicated hig h-capacity Internet and E thernet circuits.  Nonswitched access revenue decreased  $ 26.0 million, or 11 %, to $ 208.2 million ,   and $62.7 million, or 9% , to 
$641.0 million, respectively, f or the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 , as compared with the same period s of 201 3 , primarily due to lower monthly recurring charges attributable to a reduction 
in wireless backhaul revenue and other carrier service   revenues . We expect wireless data usage to continue to increase, which may drive the need for additional wireless backhaul capacity. Despite the need for 
additional capacity, we expect to experience declines in wireless backhaul revenue  
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( $ in thousands )     For the three months ended September 30,     
$ Increase  % Increase  

2014  2013  (Decrease)  (Decrease)  

Voice services  $ 471,786  $ 510,080  $ (38,294) (8) %  
Data and Internet services        468,796        471,211        (2,415)    (1) %     
Other  76,045  68,772  7,273  11  %  

Customer revenue  1,016,627  1,050,063  (33,436) (3) %  
Switched access and subsidy  124,247  135,215  (10,968) (8) %  

Total revenue  $ 1,140,874  $ 1,185,278  $ (44,404) (4) %  

For the nine months ended September 30,  
$ Increase  % Increase  

2014  2013  (Decrease)  (Decrease)  

Voice services  $ 1,425,675  $ 1,549,824  $ (124,149) (8) %  
Data and Internet services  1,393,022  1,393,475  (453) (0) %  
Other  232,169  221,752  10,417  5  %  

Customer revenue  3,050,866  3,165,051  (114,185) (4) %  
Switched access and subsidy  391,319  416,156  (24,837) (6) %  

Total revenue  $ 3,442,185  $ 3,581,207  $ (139,022) (4) %  
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throughout the remainder of 2014 , as co mpared to the same periods of the prior year , as our carrier partners migrate to Ethernet solutions at a lower price point.  
   
Other    
Other revenue for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   increased  $ 7.3 million, or 11 %, to $ 76.0 million,   and $10.4 million, or 5% , to $232.2 million, respectively, as compared with the 
three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 ,   primarily due to lower bad debt expenses that are charged against revenue and increased cost recovery surcharge rates, partially offset by lower directory 
services revenue .   For the nine month period, we also experienced lower wireless revenue associated with the sale of our interest in the Mohave partnership on April 1, 2013.  
   
Switched Access and Subsidy  
Switched access and subsidy revenue for the three an d   nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased $11.0 million, or 8 %, to $ 124.2 million, and $24.8 million, or 6% , to $391.3 million, respectively, as 
compared with the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 . Switched access revenue decreased  $ 8.1 million, or 15 %, to $ 47.8 million, and $26.1 million, or 15% , to $153.9 million, respectively, for 
the first three and nine   months of 2014 , as compared with the s ame period s of 2013 , primarily due to the impact of a decline in minutes of use related to access line losses and the displacement of minutes of use 
by wireless, email an d other communications services   combined with a reduction due to the impact of the lower rates enacted by the FCC’s intercarrier compensation reform in July 2013 .   Switched access and 
subsidy revenue includes subsidy payments we receive from federal and state agencies, including surcharges billed to customers that are remitted to universal service administrators.  Subsidy revenue decreased   
$2.8 million , or 4 %, to $76.5 million and increased $1.3   million , or 1 %,   to $237.4 million , respectively, for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 , as compared with the same period s of 
2013 .  The decrease in the third quarter of 2014 as compared to the second quarter of 2014 and the third quarter of 2013 was due to the anticipated decline in subsidy recovery in excess of allowable subscriber 
access recovery charges.  
   
Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (which are billed to customers and remitted to universal service administrators) for the Company were $ 123.0 million, $ 24.2 million and $ 90.3 million, respectively, and 
$ 237.4 million in total, or 7 % of our revenues, for the nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 .  The federal an d state subsidy revenue for the nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 represents 4 % of our 
consolidated revenues. Total federal and state subsidies and surcharges were $ 236.2 million, or 7 % of our revenues, for the nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 .  
   
On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the   2011 Order to reform the USF and Intercarrier Compensation. The 2011 Order changed how federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed, with these changes being 
phased-in beginning in July 2012. These changes transition the USF , which supports voice services in high-cost areas, to the CAF, which supports broadband deployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phase I, 
implemented in 2012 to provide interim support while the FCC developed CAF Phase II , provide d for ongoing USF support for price cap carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in the first round 
of CAF Phase I made available for price cap ILECs an additional $300 million in incremental high-cost broadband support to be used for broadban d deployment to unserved areas. In 2012 and early 2013, we 
received $71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I funds. The $71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I support is expected to enable an incremental 92,877 households for broadband service and was 
accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Construction.  We are required to spend the first round of the CAF Phase I funds to enable these 92,877 households no later than July 24, 2015.  We initially recorded such 
funds as increases to Cash and Other lia bilities in the balance sheet. We spent $ 19.3 million of the first round of CAF Phase I funds on network expansion during the first nine months of 2014 and $ 56.9 million of 
the se CAF Phase I funds to date through September 30, 2014 ,   enabling 77,600 unserved households .  
   
On May 21, 2013, the FCC released the 2013 Order authorizing a second round of CAF Phase I.  As part of this May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC expanded the areas eligible for funding to incl ude those that 
lack service of 3 Mbps download and 768 kbps upload.  In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from the second round of CAF Phase I and in December 2013 the FCC awarded $57.6 million to us to serve 94,899 
locations in our high-cost, unserved and underserved areas across multiple states.  The FCC also announced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier was eligible for an additional $3.7 million   in funding to serve 6,815 
locations.  We received these funds in February 2014. We are required to spend the second round of the CAF Phase I funds to enable these 101,714 households no later than March 14, 2017. The second round of 
CAF Phase I includes certain accompanying spending requirements from the Company, and our capital expenditure plans take this into account.   We spent $ 21.6 million of the second round of CAF Phase I funds 
on network expansion during the first nine months of 2014 ,   enabling 61,600 unserved   and underserved households .  
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In the aggregate, w e spent $ 40.9 million of the CAF Phase I funds received on network expansion and upgrades during the first nine months of 2014 and $ 78.5 million of all CAF Phase I funds received through 
September 30, 2014 ,   enabling 139,200 households in total .  
   
The FCC continues to finalize its CAF Phase II program, which is intended to provide long-term support for broadband in high-cost areas that were unserved by a competitor.  The 201 1   Order established that 
price cap carriers would have the right of first refusal to accept support across the high-cost footprint of their state in exchange for committing to provide broadband and voice services to those areas for five 
years.  On June 10, 2014, the FCC released an Order and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking seeking comment on potential changes to the CAF Phase II structure.  The Notice seeks comment on whether the FCC 
should raise the broadband speed obligation for CAF Phase II from 4 Mbps download to 10 Mbps download.  Recognizing that such a change in speed may also be more costly, the FCC seeks comments on 
whether it should lengthen the term of CAF Phase II support available to price cap carriers and also whether it should relax price cap carriers’ obligation to deploy to 100% of the supported locations in exchange 
for a commensurate reduction in funding.  These changes to the CAF Phase II program have not been finalized .   
   
The 2011 Order also makes changes to Intercarrier Compensation. Intercarrier Compensation, which is the payment framework that governs how carriers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate 
traffic, began a multi-year transition in July 2012, with the second step implemented in July 2013 and the third step in July 2014 .  The transition will move terminating traffic to a near zero rate by 2017. We expect 
to be able to recover a significant portion of those revenues through end user rates and other replacement support mechanisms . We do not expect these changes to have a significant impact on our revenues in 
2014 .  
   
Effective December 29, 2011, the 2011 Order required providers to pay interstate access rates for the termination of VoIP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specified that 
changes to originating access rates for VoIP traffic would not be implemented until July 2014. The 2011 Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain parties have also petitioned the FCC to 
reconsider various aspects of the 2011 Order.  T he net impact of the 2011 Order during the period from July 2012 through September   201 4 was insignificant . The net effect of this change to originating access 
after July 1, 2014 is dependent upon the percentage of VoIP traffic.  
   
Certain states also have their own open proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and other intercarrier compensation and state universal service funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted state 
jurisdiction on most access charges, many states could consider moving forward with their proceedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided or the effect on our subsidy or switched access 
revenues.  
   
   

OPERATING EXPENSES  
   

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES  
   

   
   

   
Network access expenses for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 increased   $ 3.9 million, or 4 %, to $ 107.9 million, and $ 0.7 million   to $321.2 million, respectivel y, as compared with the 
three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to   higher joint pole rates and an increase in network access expenses related to higher broadband  
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( $ in thousands )  For the three months ended September 30,  
         $ Increase  % Increase  

2014  2013  (Decrease)  (Decrease)  

Network access expenses  $ 107,866  $ 103,955  $ 3,911  4  %  

      For the nine months ended September 30,                 $ Increase  % Increase  
2014  2013  (Decrease)  (Decrease)                            

Network access expenses  $ 321,182  $ 320,467  $ 715  0  %  
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subscriber counts , partially offset by decreased promotional costs and lower reciprocal compensation costs that are reco rded in network access expenses .  
   

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  
   

   
   

Excludes $40.3 million related to the impact of pension settlement costs , as discussed below .  
   
Wage and benefit expenses  
Wage and benefit expenses for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased  $ 25.4 million , or 9 %, to $ 267.6 million, and $69.7 million, or 8% , to $802.2 million, respectively, as compared 
to the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to lower costs for compensation resulting from low er average employee headcount   combined with lower costs for certain other benefits, 
including pension and OP EB expense, as discussed below. Wage and benefit expenses included $ 1.6 million and $ 9.4 million of severance costs for the nine   month periods in 201 4 and 201 3 , respectively .  
   
Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are included in our wage and benefit expenses. Pension and OPEB costs , excluding the impact of pension settlement costs, for the three months ended September 30 , 
2014 and 2013 were approximately $ 13.3 million and $ 20. 6 million, respectively. Pension and OPEB costs include pension and OPEB expense of $ 16.8   m illion and $ 25. 6 million, less amounts capitalized 
into the cost of capital expenditures of $ 3.5 million and $ 5.0 million, respectively.   
   
Pension and OPEB costs , excluding the impact of pension settlement costs, for the nine   months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $ 42.0 million and $ 61. 6 million, respectively. Pension 
and OPEB costs include pension and OPEB expense of $ 53.3   million and $ 76.6 million, less amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures of $ 11.3 million and $ 15.0 million, respectively.   
   
Based on current assumptions and plan asset values, we estimate that our 201 4 pension and OPEB expenses   will be approximately $ 65 million to $7 5 million ,   excluding   amounts related to the recently 
acquired Connecticut operations and amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures , as compared to  $ 97.1 million in 201 3, excluding the impact of pension settlement costs and amounts capitalized into 
the cost of capital expenditures .   
   
All other operating expenses  
All other operating expenses for the three and nine   months ended September 30 ,   2014   increased  $ 9.7 million, or 4 %, to $ 265.8 million, and $30.8 million, or 4% , to $783.5 million , respectively, as 
compared with the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013 ,   primarily due to an increase in certain litigation reserves in the first quarter of 2014 ,   increased fleet and facilities costs   and gross receipts 
state tax expenses , partially offset by lower outside services and network provisioning costs .  
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( $ in thousands )  For the three months ended September 30,  
         $ Increase  % Increase  

2014  2013  (Decrease)  (Decrease)  

Wage and benefit expenses  $ 267,626  $ 293,018  $ (25,392) (9) %  
All other operating expenses     265,843     256,123     9,720  4  %  

$ 533,469  $ 549,141  $ (15,672) (3) %           
For the nine months ended September 30,                          $ Increase  % Increase  

      2014     2013           (Decrease)     (Decrease)  

Wage and benefit expenses  $ 802,233  $ 871,909  $ (69,676) (8) %  
All other operating expenses     783,547     752,746     30,801  4  %  

$ 1,585,780  $ 1,624,655  $ (38,875) (2) %  
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE  
   
   
   

   
Depreciation and amortization expense for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   decreased  $ 24.8 million, or 9 %, to $ 260.9 million , and $71.5 million, or 8% , to $815.8 million, respectively,   
as compared to the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2013. Amortization expense decreased  $ 33.4 million in 2014   due to the accelerated method   of amortization related to the customer base . 
Depreciation expense decreased  $ 38.1 million in 2014, primarily due to changes in the remaining useful lives of certain plant assets and a lower net asset base .      
   
We annually commission an independent study to update the estimated remaining useful lives of our plant assets.  The latest study was complet ed in the fourth quarter of 2013 , and after review and analysis of the 
results, we adopted new lives for certain plant assets a s of October 1, 2013. This change had an insignificant impact on depreciation expense for the first nine months of 2014. Our “ composite depreciation rate” 
for plant assets was 6.24 % as a result of the study. We anticipate depreciation expense of approximately $ 790 million to $81 0 million in 2014 , excluding amounts related to the recently acquired Connecticut 
operations .  
   
Amortization expense includes   the apportionment of the cost of the intangible assets (primarily customer base) that were acquired in the 2010 Transaction amort ized on an accelerated method. We anticipate 
amortization expense of approximately $ 285 million in 2014 , excluding amounts related to the recently acquired Connecticut operations .      
   

PENSION SETTLEMENT COSTS  
   

   
Our pension plan contains provisions that provide certain employees with the option of receiving lu mp sum payment upon retirement. The Company’s accounting policy is to record these payments as a settlement 
only if, in the aggregate, they exceed the sum of the annual service and interest costs for the plan’s net periodic pension benefit cost. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, lump sum pension 
settlement payments to te rminated or retired individuals exceeded the settlement threshold and as a result, the Company was required to recognize a non-cash settlement charge of $ 40.3 million during the third 
quarter of 2013.   The non-cash charge was required to accelerate the recognition of a portion of the previously unrecognized actuari al losses in the pension plan.      
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( $ in thousands )  For the three months ended September 30,     
         $ Increase  % Increase  
   2014     2013     (Decrease)  (Decrease)  
         

Depreciation expense  $ 195,044  $ 208,719  $ (13,675) (7) %  
Amortization expense     65,853     76,982     (11,129) (14) %  

$ 260,897  $ 285,701  $ (24,804) (9) %  
         

For the nine months ended September 30,     
         $ Increase  % Increase     2014     2013     (Decrease)  (Decrease)  
         

Depreciation expense  $ 598,132  $ 636,201  $ (38,069) (6) %  
Amortization expense     217,635     251,024     (33,389) (13) %  

      $ 815,767     $ 887,225     $ (71,458)    (8) %     

  

   
For the three and nine months ended September 30,  

($ in thousands)        
   2014     2013        

Pension settlement costs     $  -     $ 40,309  
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ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS  
   

   

   
During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company began to incur acquisition and integration costs in connection with the AT&T Transaction that closed on October 24, 2014 .   Acquisition costs include legal, 
financial advisory, accounting, regu latory and other related costs. Integration costs include expenses incurred in connection with the AT&T Transaction to integrate the network and information technology 
platforms and to enable other integration initiatives. The Company incurred $ 72.1 million of operating expenses , consisting of $ 2.9 million and $ 69.2 million of   ac quisition   and integration costs , respectively , 
  related to the AT&T Transaction   during the nine months ended September 30 , 2014 . We also incurred $ 82.3 million in capital expenditures related to integration activities during the nine months ended 
September 30 , 2014.  
   

GAIN ON SALE OF MOHAVE PARTNERSHIP INTEREST  
   

   

   
On April 1, 2013, the Company sold its 33 ⅓ % partnership interest in the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership, in which Frontier was the General Partner. The Company recognized a gain on sale of 
approximately $14.6 million before taxes in the second quarter of 2013.  
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      For the three months ended September 30,  
($ in thousands)        

   2014     2013        
Acquisition and integration costs     $ 41,611     $  -  

                           For the nine months ended September 30,        
   2014     2013        

Acquisition and integration costs     $ 72,058     $  -  

  

For the nine months ended September 30,  
($ in thousands)        

2014  2013        
Gain on sale of Mohave partnership interest  $  -  $ 14,601  
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INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME , NET / LOSSES ON EARLY  EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT /  
INTEREST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE  

   
   
   

   
Investment and other i ncome , net  
Investment and other income , net for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   in creased  $ 23.6 million   and $17.4 million ,   as compared with the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 
2013 ,   respectively, primarily due to a   $25.0 million gain recognized in 2014 associated with the sale of our interest in Fairmo u nt Cellular LLC .   This increase was   partially offset by a decrease in the 
settlement of customer advances of $3.1 million, proceeds of $ 2.3 million in the settlement of a split-dollar life insurance policy for a former senior executive during the second quarter of 2013 and investment 
gains associated with cash received in connection with our investment in Adelphia of $ 1.4 million during the first nine months of 2013 .  
   
Our average cash balances were $ 861.1 million and $ 853.0 million for the nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our average total restricted cash balance s   were   $ 388.3 million and 
$ 31.8 million for the nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.  
   
Losses on Early Extinguishment of Debt  
During the second quarter of 2013, we recognized a loss of $ 159.8 million on the early extinguishment of debt in connection with various debt tender offers , privately negotiated transaction s and open market 
repurchases that resulted in the retirement of $ 1,002.4 million of the Company’s senior notes.  
   
Interest expense  
Interest expense for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   increased  $ 6.5 million, or 4% ,   to $ 170.4 million, and $7.1 million , or 1%,   to $508.9 million, respectively, as compared with the 
three and nine months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to the commitment fees of $ 22.5 million on the Bridge Loan Facility during the first nine months of 2014 and additional interest on the $1.55 
billion debt financing in September 2014 related to the AT&T Transaction ,   partially offset by the lower average debt levels resulting from the debt refinancing activities and debt retirements of $ 813.0 million 
during 2013 .   Our average debt outstanding was $ 8,294.3   million and $ 8,149.1   million for the third quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively , and $ 8,172.4 million and $ 8,335.1 million for the nine months 
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively .   Our composite average borrowing rate as of September 30 , 2014 and 201 3   was 7.76 % and 7.96 % , respectively .  
   
Income tax expense  
Income tax expense   for the three and nine   months ended September 30 , 2014   in cre ased  $ 1.3 million to $ 9.8 million, and $23.0 million to $46.0 million, respectively ,   as compared with the three and nine 
months ended September 30 , 2013 , primarily due to higher pretax income in 2014 , re sulting from the $159.8 million in losses recognized in 2013 on the earl y extinguishment of debt and the $40.3 million in 
non-cash pension settlement costs recognized during the third quarter of 2013. The effective tax rate for the first nine months of 201 4 and 201 3   was 27.9 % and   32.5 %, respectively.   

   

   
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

  

For the three months ended September 30,     
( $ in thousands )           $ Increase  % Increase  

2014  2013     (Decrease)  (Decrease)           
Investment and other income, net  $ 25,106  $ 1,524  $ 23,582  NM %  
Interest expense  $ 170,371  $ 163,835  $ 6,536  4  %  
Income tax expense  $ 9,773  $ 8,461  $ 1,312  16  %           

For the nine months ended September 30,     
         $ Increase  % Increase  
   2014     2013     (Decrease)  (Decrease)           

Investment and other income, net  $ 26,484  $ 9,134  $ 17,350  190  %  
Losses on early extinguishment of debt  $  -  $ 159,780  $ (159,780) (100) %  
Interest expense  $ 508,939  $ 501,802  $ 7,137  1  %  
Income tax expense  $ 45,996  $ 22,981  $ 23,015  100  %  
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Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 include the impact of a $4 . 0 million benefit from federal research and development credits, an $8. 8 million benefit from the domestic production 
activities deduction and a $2.9 million benefit arising from state tax law changes, partially offset by a net increase in reserves for uncertain tax positions of $0.9 million.  
   
Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 include the impact of a charge of $ 5.2 million resulting from the settlement of the 2010 IRS audit and a $6.0 million charge resulting from the 
adjustment of deferred tax balances, partially offset by a $ 5.0 million benefit from the net reversal of reserves for uncertain tax positions and a $5.0 million benefit arising from state law changes that was 
recognized in the third quarter of 2013 .  
   
As of September 30, 2014, there were no uncertain tax positions for which the statute s of limitations are expected to expire during the next twelve months and which would affect our effective tax rate.  
   
We paid   $ 36.1 million   and $ 82.7 million in net cash taxes during the nine   months ended September 30 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Our 2013 cash taxes paid reflected the continued impact of bonus 
depreciation in accordance with the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012.        
   
Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier    
Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier for the third quarter of 201 4   was $ 42.0 million ,   or $ 0.0 4 per share, as compared to $ 35.4 million, or $ 0.04 per share, in the third quarter of 2013 , 
and net income of $118.9 million, or $ 0.12 per share , as compared to $ 45.1 million , or $0.0 4 per share, for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 .   
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Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk  
   
We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of our business operations due to ongoing investing and funding activities , including those associated with our pension plan assets . Market risk refers to the 
potential change in fair value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in int erest rates and equity prices. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments, derivative commodity instruments or other 
financial ins truments for trading purposes. As a result, we do not undertake any specific actions to cover our exposure to market risks , and we are not party to any market risk management agreements other than in 
the normal course of business .   Our primary market risk exposures from interest rate risk and equity price risk are as follows:  
   
Interest Rate Exposure  
   
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-bearing portion of our pension investment portfolio   and related obligations, and floating rate indebtedness. As of September 
30 ,   2014, 96 %   of our long-term debt had fixed interest rate s .   We had no interest rate swap agreements related to our fixed rate debt in effect at September 30 , 2014 .     Upon consummation of the AT&T 
Transaction, and in conjunction with the drawdown of $350.0 million from the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined herein, 92 % of our long-term debt had fixed interest rates .  The Company believes that 
its exposure to interest rate changes is minimal.  
   
Our objectives in managing our interest rate risk are to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lowe r our overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives ,   only $ 416.9   
million of our outstanding borrowings at September 30 , 2014   have floating interest rates. In addition, our undrawn  $ 750.0 million revolving credit facility has interest rates that float with the LIBO Rate , as 
defined. Consequently, we have limited material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in interes t rates on our long-term debt. A n adverse change in interest rates would increase the amount that we 
pay on our variable rate obligations and could result in fluctuations in the fair value of our fix ed rate obligations. Based upon our overal l interest rate exposure at September 30 , 2014 , a near-term change in 
interest rates would not material ly affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.  
   
At September 30 , 2014 , the fair value of our long-term debt was estimated to be approximately $ 9.6 billion , based on our overall weighted average   borrowing rate of 7.76 % and our overall weighted average 
maturity of approximately nine   years.   As of September 30 ,   2014 ,   there has been no significant change in the weighted average maturity applicable to our obligations since December 31, 2013 .    
   
Equity Price Exposure  
   
Our exposure to market risks for changes in equity security prices as of September 30 , 2014 is limited to our pension plan assets.  We have no other security investments of any significant amount.  
   
The Company’s pension plan assets have in creased from $ 1,216.5 million at December 31, 2013   to $ 1,288.1 million at September 30 , 2014 ,   an in crease of $ 71.6 million, or 6 %. This in crease is a result of   
positive investment returns   of $ 91.7   million and cash contributions   of $ 70.5 million , offset by benefit payments of $ 90.6 million .   An additional cash contribution of $ 12.7 million was made on October 15, 
2014 , for a total contribution of $ 83.2 million i n 2014 .   Our 2014 total contributions include the impact of the extension of funding relief included in the Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014.   The 
Company estimates that t here are no further contributions required in 2014.  
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Item 4.   Controls and Procedures  
   

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, regarding the effectiveness of our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule s 13a-15(e) and 15d - 15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) .  Based upon this evaluation, our principal executive officer and 
principal financial officer concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this report, September 30 , 2014 ,   that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.      
   

We reviewed our internal control over financial reporting at September 30 , 2014 .  There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in an evaluation thereof that occurred 
during the third   fiscal quarter of 201 4   that material ly affected, or is reasonably likely to material ly affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  
   
In May 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued its updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework (the 2013 Framework) and related illustrative 
documents. COSO will continue to make available its original Framework during the transition period extending to December 15, 2014.   The Company currently utilizes COSO’s original Framework , which was 
published in 1992 and is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing and conducting internal controls over external financial reporting and assessing their effectiveness. The 2013 Framework is 
expected to help organizations design and implement internal control in light of many changes in business and operating environments since the issuance of the original Framework, broaden the application of 
internal control in addressing operations and reporting objectives, and clarify the requirements for determining what constitutes effective internal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Framework in 2014 and do not 
expect that it will have a significant impact on the Company.  
   
   

   

   
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures  

(b)  Changes in internal control over financial reporting  
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I tem 1.      Legal Proceedings  
   
See Note 1 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report.  There have been no material changes to our legal proceedings from the information provided in Item 3.  “ 
Legal Proceedings ” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 .      
   
We are party to various legal proceedings (including individual, class and putative class actions) arising in the normal course of our business covering a wide range of matters and types of claims including , but not 
limited to, general contract s ,   billing disputes, rights of access,   taxes and surcharges , consumer protection, trademark and patent infringement, employment, regulatory , tort ,   claims of competitors and disputes 
with other carriers .  Litigation is subject to uncertainty and the outcome of individual matters is not predictable.  However, we believe that the ultimate resolution of all such matters, after considering insurance 
coverage or other indemnities to which we are entitled, will not have a material   adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or our cash flows.    
   
Item 1A.  Risk Factors  
   
Other than as set forth below, t here have been no other material changes to the Risk Factors described in Part 1 ,   Item 1A.  “ Risk Factors ” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2013 .      
   
Item 2.     Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  
   
There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended September 30 , 2014 .  
   

   
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  

   
   
   

   

   
Item 4.   Mine Safety Disclosure  
   
Not applicable.  
   

   

   
PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

  

Period  
Total Number  

of Shares Purchased  
Average Price  
Paid per Share                       

July 1, 2014 to July 31, 2014                 
Employee Transactions (1)     27,859       $ 5.83                
August 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014             
Employee Transactions (1)     1,002       $ 6.55                
September 1, 2014 to September 30, 2014             
Employee Transactions (1)     361       $ 6.61                

              
Totals July 1, 2014 to September 30, 2014             
Employee Transactions (1)     29,222       $ 5.86  
                  

(1) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the terms of grants under employee stock compensation plans) to offset minimum tax withholding obligations that occur upon the vesting of restricted shares. The 
Company’s stock compensation plans provide that the value of shares withheld shall be the average of the high and low price of the Company’s common stock on the date the relevant transaction occurs.  
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  Item 6.     Exhibits  
   
   

   

   
   

   
   
   

   

   
PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION  

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S  
   

  

(a)  Exhibits:     
         
   31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
   31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
   32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
   32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
   101.INS      XBRL Instance Document.  
   101.SCH     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.  
   101.PRE     XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.  
   101.CAL     XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.  
   101.LAB     XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.  
   101.DEF     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.  
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SIGNATURE  

   
   
   
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the R egistrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned , thereunto duly authorized.  
   
   

   

   
   

   

   

  

   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION  
   (Registrant)  
      
      
   By:  /s/ Donald Daniels  
   Donald Daniels  
   Senior   Vice President and    
   Controller  
      
Date: November 5 , 2014     
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                                                         Exhibit 31.1  
   

CERTIFICATIONS  
   
I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:  
   
    1.  I  have  reviewed  this  quarterly  report  on  Form  10- Q  of  Frontier Communications Corporation ;  
   
    2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement   of a  material  fact or omit to  state a  material  fact  necessary  to make the   statements 
made, in light of the circumstances  under which such statements were   made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
   
    3.  Based  on  my  knowledge,  the  financial  statements,  and  other  financial    information  included in  this  report,  fairly  present  in  all  material  respects  the    
financial  condition,  results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as   of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
   
    4. The  registrant's  other  certifying  officer and I are  responsible for   establishing and maintaining  disclosure  controls and procedures (as defined in   Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal  control over financial   reporting  (as defined in Exchange Act Rules  13a-15(f) and  15d-15(f))  for the   registrant and have:  
   

         a) Designed such disclosure  controls and  procedures,  or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the registrant,  including its consolidated  subsidiaries,  is made  known to us by  others  within  those entities,  particularly  during 
the  period in which  this  report is being prepared;  

   
         b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting,  or caused such internal  control over financial reporting to be designed under our   supervision,  to 
provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding  the  reliability  of  financial  reporting  and  the  preparation  of  financial  statements  for 
external  purposes  in  accordance  with  generally   accepted   accounting principles;  

   
         c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and  procedures  and  presented  in this report our  conclusions  about the effectiveness of 
the disclosure  controls and procedures,  as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

   
         d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the  registrant's  internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter 
(the  registrant's  fourth  fiscal  quarter  in  the  case  of  an  annual  report)  that  has  materially  affected,  or  is  reasonably  likely  to 
materially  affect,  the  registrant's  internal  control over financial reporting; and  

   

   



    5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on   our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,  to the   
registrant's  auditors  and the audit  committee  of the  registrant's  board of   directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
   

         a) All significant  deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or  operation  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  which are reasonably  likely 
to adversely affect the registrant's  ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

   
         b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting.  

   
   
   

   
                                                                    
                                    
   
   

6 

Date:  November 5 , 2014           /s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter  
   Mary Agnes Wilderotter  
   Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
      



                                               Exhibit 31.2  
                                                                               

CERTIFICATIONS  
   
I, John M. Jureller , certify that:  
   
    1.  I  have  reviewed  this  quarterly  report  on  Form  10- Q  of  Frontier Communications Corporation ;  
   
    2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement   of a  material  fact or omit to  state a  material  fact  necessary  to make the   statements 
made, in light of the c ircumstances  under which such statements were   made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
   
    3.  Based  on  my  knowledge,  the  financial  statements,  and  other  financial    information  included in  this  report,  fairly  present  in  all  material  respects  the    
financial  condition,  results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as   of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
   
    4. The  registrant's  other  certifying  officer and I are  responsible for   establishing and maintaining  disclosure  controls and procedures (as defined in   Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal  control over financial   reporting  (as defined in Exchange Act Rules  13a-15(f) and  15d-15(f))  for the   registrant and have:  
   

         a) Designed such disclosure  controls and  procedures,  or caused such   disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the registrant,  including its consolidated  subsidiaries,  is made  known to us by  others  within  those entities,  particularly  during 
the  period in which  this  report is being prepared;  

   
         b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting,  or caused such internal  control over  financial  reporting to be designed  under our supervision,  to 
provide reasonable  assurance regarding the reliability of financial  reporting  and  the  preparation  of  financial  statements  for 
external  purposes  in  accordance  with  generally   accepted   accounting principles;  

   
         c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and  procedures  and  presented  in this report our  conclusions  about the effectiveness of 
the disclosure  controls and procedures,  as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

   
         d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the  registrant's  internal   control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal 
quarter  (the  registrant's  fourth  fiscal  quarter  in  the  case  of  an  annual  report)  that  has  materially affected,  or  is  reasonably  likely  to 
materially  affect,  the  registrant's  internal  control over financial reporting; and  

   

   



    5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on   our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,  to the   
registrant's  auditors  and the audit  committee  of the  registrant's  board of   directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
   

         a) All significant  deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or  operation  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  which are reasonably  likely 
to adversely affect the registrant's  ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

   
         b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting.  

   
   
   

   
         

                                                 
                                 
   
   

  

Date:  November 5 , 2014  /s/ John M. Jureller  
   John M. Jureller  
   Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
      



                                                           Exhibit 32.1  
   
   
   

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

   
   
In  connection  with the quarterly Report of Frontier  Communications  Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10- Q for the period ended September 30 , 2014 as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange  Commission on the date hereof (the  "Report"),  I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, 
pursuant to 18 U.S.C.  Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   
    (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S ecurities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
   
    (2)  The  information  contained  in the  Report  fairly  presents,  in all  material respects,  the financial  condition and results of operations of the Company.  
   
   
   
/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter                              
Mary Agnes Wilderotter  
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
November 5 , 2014  
   
   
   
This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject   to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other purpose.  
   
A signed  original of this written  statement  required by Section 906, or other   document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that   appears 
in typed form within the  electronic  version of this written  statement   required by Section 906, has been  provided to Frontier  Communications  Corporation   and will be 
retained by Frontier  Communications  Corporation and  furnished  to the   Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  
   



                                                       
Exhibit 32.2  

   
   

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

   
   
In  connection  with the quarterly Report of Frontier  Communications  Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10- Q for the period ended September 30 , 2014 as filed with 
the Securities  and Exchange  Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"),  I,  John M. Jureller  ,  Chief  Financial  Officer of the Company,  certify,  pursuant  to 18 
U.S.C.  Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   
    (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
   
    (2)  The  information  contained  in the  Report  fairly  presents,  in all  material respects,  the financial  condition and results of operations  of the Company.  
   
   
/s/ John M. Jureller                                                           _  
John M. Jureller  
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer    
November 5 , 2014  
   
   
This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other purpose.  
   
A signed  original of this written  statement  required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in 
typed form within the  electronic  version of this written  statement required by Section 906, has been  provided to Frontier  Communications  Corporation and will be 
retained by Frontier  Communications  Corporation and  furnished  to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  
   
   


